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ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT

on the

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION CORPORATIOI\

For the Years Ended December 31, 2Ol9 and 2018



EXECUTIVE SUTtf,ARY

INTRODUCTION

The Philippine National Construction Corporation (PNCC or the Corporation), prcviously
known as the Construction Development Corporation of the Philippines (CDCP), was granted
the franchise to oonstruc{, operate and maintain the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX), South
Luzon Expressway (SLEX) and Metro Manila Expressway by virtue of Presidential Decree
(PD) No. 1 113 issued on March 31, 1977 , as amended by PD No. 1894 issued on December
22, 1983. The debt-to-equrty conversion pursuant to and under the direc'tives of Letter of
lnstruction 1295 promulgated on February 23, 1983 gavethe Govemment majority ownership
of the Corporation.

From 1987 to 2001, PNCC still engaged in some construclion business but this resulted in
losses. Since 2}O2,the Corporation has veered away from'acfive involvement in construction
operations, and focused more on the openation and maintenance of its tollways. However,
further financial difficulties prevented PNCC from operating and maintaining its tollways in a
manner required of a public utilily. Thereforc, starting in 1995, PNCC entercd into Joint
Venture Agreements (JVAs) that resulted in the division of the Tollways into three portions,
the NLEX, the SLEX and the South Metro Manila SkWvay (SMMS).

On February 10, 2005, PNCC tumed overthe Operation and Maintenan@ (O&M) of the North
Luzon Tollways to the Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC), while the O&M for the
South Metro Manila Skpvay was tumed over to the SkWvay Operation and Maintenance
Corporation on December 31 ,2007 .

Priorto the expiration of the franchise of PNCC on April 30, 2007, the Corporation submitted
to Congress all the requirements needed for the renewal of the same, but it was not able to
get the required Senate approval. The Totl Regulatory Board GRB) issued a Toll Operation
Certificate to PNCC on April 30, 2007 for the O&M of the SLEX and to collec't toll fees, in the
interim, after itsfranchise expiration. The PNCC handed overthe O&M of the SLEXto Manila
Toll Expressway System lnc. on May 2,2010.

On June 22, 2016 and October 17, 2016, the Corpomtion's Board of Directors and its
Shareholderc, respectively, approved the amendment to the 4th Article of the Articles of
lncorporation to extend the corporate term forffi (50) yearc from November 22,2016, which
amendment was apprcved by Securtties and Exchange Commission on November 21,2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Comparative Financial Position
(ln thousand pesos)

2019 2018
(As restated)

lncrease
(Decrease)

Assets
Liabilities

38,2U,873
20,651,780

17,970,48A
14,243,311

20,204,393
6,408,469

13,855,924Equity 17,583,093 3,727,169



Comparative Results of Operatlons
(ln thousand pesos)

2019 2018
(As restated)

lncrease
(Decrease)

Operatinq

lncome
Personnel services

19,386,382
(43,490)

(358.219)

293,884
(46,360)

(330.732)

19,092,498
(2,870)
27,487

19,067,881
5,732,017

13,335,864

Income (loss) before tax
lncome tax expense

19,984,673
$.732.0171

(83,208)

0

Net income (loss) 13,252,656 (83,208)

SCOPE AND OB.'ECTIVES OF AUDIT \

Our audit covered the examination, on a test basis, of the acounts and transac'tions of PNCC

for the period January 1 to December 31 ,2019 in accordance with lntemational Standards of
Supreme Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) to enable us to express an opinion on the faimess of
presentation of the financial statements fur the years ended Deember 31, 2019 and 2018.
Also, wecondusted ouraudilstoassesscompliancewith pertinentlaws, rulesand regulations,
as well as adherence to prescribed policies and procedures.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S OPINION Ol,l THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We rendered an adverse opinion on PNCC's financial statements due to the reognition of the
unconverted debts as equity and the non-recognition of interests and other charges thereon
resulting in the understatement of total liabililies and overstatement of total equity both by
P68.667 billion and P67.880 billion as of Deoember 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
accumulated deficit is also understated by P63.115 billion and P62.328 billion as of December
31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

SUMTIIARY OF SIGNIFICANT AUDIT OBSERVANONS AND RECOTTENDATIONS

The following are the other significant observations and the conesponding recommendations:

1. The conectness of PNCC's 10 per cent revenue share amounting lo P112.322 million,
remitted by the Joint Venture (JV) Companies operating the SLEX, NLEX and Skyway as
of December 31, 2019 cannot be ascertained due to the absence of verifiable date/
information as basis in the computation of such share.

We recommended that Management oontinue its efforts to make reprcsentation with the
JV Companies to obtain pertinent documents used as the basis forthe computation of 10
per cent revenue share of PNCC and validate the same and fumish the Audit Team with
the said documents induding the results of validation.



2. Variances between the balance per books and confirmed balances in the amount of
P6.545 million, negative balances of P0.950 million and non-provision of allowance for
impairment losses in the amount of P28,169, render the validity and reliability of the
Receivables accou nt ag g regatin g P7 .523 mil I ion dou btful.

We recommended that Management:

a) Analyze and reconcile the variances and negative balances and provide allowance
for impairment loss; and

b) Effec{ the necessary adjusting joumal entries in the books, if wananted, so that
reliable information is presented in the financial statements.

3. The delisted PNCC's investment (golf membership shares) in Mimosa Golf and Country
Club (MGCC) amounting to P1.200 million is considered worthless and unrecoverable.

We recommended that Management inform and secure authority from the Board of
Directors for the Controllership Department to derecognize the investment with MGCC
and effect the necessary adjusting entry in the boks.

4. The faithful representation of the balance of Customer Deposit account amounting to
P125.553 million could not be ascertained due to contintous recognilion of expired
secufity deposits from lessees totaling P24.4U million and bid deposits already due for
recognition as income amounting to P240,019, contrary to the Conceptual Framework
for General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR) by Public Sector Entities.

We recommended that Management:

a) Determine the propriety of the recorded security deposits and if found in order,
inform the former lessees to claim their secudty deposits within a reasonable period
of time, after which if no reply is received, the same shall be forfeited in favor of
PNCC;

b) Reclassify to miscellaneous income or appropriate account the unapplied and
unclaimed long outstanding bid deposits;

c) Make representation with the two lessees (Ley and TGC) and inquire on the proper
dispositionlapplication of their bid deposits. Effest the necessary adjustments in the
books, if wananted;

d) Document and account for the bid deposit of Golden Construction and effect the
necessary adjustments in the books, if wananted; and

e) Conduc't periodic monitoring of the conditions/status of lease contracts relative to the
refund of security deposits and settlement of winning bidders' bid price for the
disposed assets applying the bid deposits as payments.

5. Nine out of 13 real properties of PNCC, eight classified as lnvestment property and one
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), with an aggregate book value of P1.825 billion
are idle and/or unutilized to its maximum potential to earn income while incurring
maintenance expenses, contrary to the policy provided under Section 2 of Presidential
Decree (PD) No. 1445.

ilt



We recommended that Management:

a) Develop a plan of action/disposition with timelines of implementation foreach property

that is most advantageous to the Corporation, with the end view of utilizing these
properties for income generating aclivities; and

b) Make representation wilh the National Govemment, thru the Toll Regulatory Board,
regarding the appropriate disposilion of Sta. lnes property. Further, recognize in the
books the value of this ProPerty.

O. The properties in Tagoloan, Misamis Oriental and in Tabang, Guiguinto, Bulacan were
occupied by informal settlerc while the prcperty in Brgy. Sapang Maisac, Mabalacat,
Pampanga was utilized by unauthorized persons resulting to foregone potential rental
income.

We recommended that Management:

a) Take appropriate ac{ion to proted PNCC's interest over its properties especially
those which are presently occupied by informal settlers;

b) Pursue negotidions with San Vicente Village Homeownerc Association and Loca!
Govemment Unit of Tagoloan, Misamis Orientalforthe eventualsale of Tagoloan
property. lf feasible, explore the possibility of entering into the Community
Mortgage Program of the Social Housing Finance Corporation with the
Homeowne/s Association, considering that the occupants ate organized informal
settlers;

c) Execute lease contracts between PNCC and ocanpants of Tabang, Guiguinto,
Bulacan and Mabalacat, Pampanga properties for a determinable lease term and
lease payments;and

d) Monitor the properties rcgularly to prevent entry of additional informal settlers.

7. The non-payment of concession fees to the National Govemment amounting to P6.302
billion which is contrary to Clausp 2 of the Toll Operation Agreement (tOA) entered into
by and between PNCC and the Republic of the Philippines thru the Toll Regulatory Boad,
resulted in incunence of unneoessary penalty chages of et least P258.000 million
annually.

We recommended that Management:

a) Develop/devise a payment plan for approval by the Board of Directors to settle the
unpaid concession fees obligation to the NG; and

b) Comply with the provisions of the TOA by paying the remaining balance of the
concession fee due to the NG, togetherwith the penalty charges thereon.

iv



SUmIIARY OF SUSPEI{SIONS, DISALLOWA]rICES AND CHARGES AS OF YEAR.END

As of December 31, 2019, the unsettled Notices of Disallowance (ND) amounted to P468.499

million, as follows:

Particulars Quantity Amount (in millions)

Wrth Cluster's decision but under automatic
review by the Commission ProPer

NDs affirmed in the decision rendered by the
COA CGS Cluster Director. Petition for Review
filed wilh the COA Commission Proper

With Petition for Certiorari filed with the
Supreme Court

NDs wtth Notice of Finality of Decision (NFD)
and COA Order of Execution (COE)

4 172.468

23 197.364

91.697

4.369

2.601

r2

6

ND waitino aooealfrom Der]salns liable 1

36 468.499

STATUS OF ITIPLETENTATION OF PRIOR YEARS' AUDIT RECOTTENDATIONS

Out of the 67 prior years' rr@mmendations, 34 were implemented, 26 were partially
implemented and seven rvere not implemented. Details are prssented in Part lll of this Report.

v
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AUDITED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS



Republic of the PhilipPines
coiimlssloN oN AuDlr

Commonwealth Ave., Quezon City, Philippines

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Philippine National Construction Corporation
Km. 15, East Seruice Road
Bicutan, Parafiaque City

Report on the Audft of the Flnancial Statemenls

Advese Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philippine National Construc{ion Corporation
(PNCC), which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2019 and
2018, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

f n our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Bas.s for Adterse
Opinion paragraph of our report, the accompanying financial statements do not present fairly
the financial posilion of the PNCC as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial
performance and ils cash flows for the yearc then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSS).

Basis fior Adverce Opinion

Letter of Instruction (LO!) No. 1295 issued in 1983 direded all concemed C'overnment
Financial lnstitutions (GFls) to convert into shares of common stock all direct obligations of
PNCC with them. However, P5.552 billion debts were not onverted into equity due to
insufficient authorized capital. These debts were eventually transfened to the Nationa!
Government (NG) thru the Asset Privatization Trust, now Privatization Management Ofiice
(PMO), pursuant to Proclamation No. 50 issued in 1986 and serviced by the Bureau of the
Treasury (BTr). lt is PNCC's position that these unconverted debts have effeciively been
converted to equity and, therefore, should no longer bear interest and other charges.
Accordingly, it recognized in equrty the unconverted debts in the total amount of P5.552 billion
and no longer recognized the interest and other charges thereon. The NG, however, has a
contrary position.

Due to their conflic{ing positions, the pailies submitted the issue to the Department of Justiee
(DOJ) in 2012 for arbitration. ln 2014, the DOJ dismissed PNCC's petition against the PMO
and ordered the former to pay the latter its due and demandable obligation indusive of
interests and penalties until ac'tually paid. PNCC's Motion for Reconsideration (MR) and
Supplement to the MR were, likewise, denied by the DOJ in 2015. Accordingly, PNCC filed
an Appea! Memorandum with the ffice of the President of the Philippines on July 27,2015,
which, to date, is still pending with the Ofrice of the President.



Earlier, the Ofiice of the Govemment Corpoete Counsel (OGCC), in its Opinion No. 245 dated

November 15, 2007, opined that PNCC may enter into an agreement with PMO for the

conversion of PNCC's remaining liabilities into PNCC's shares of oommon stock and that after
the ompletion of the equfry conversion, PNCC shall no longer have any remaining obligations

with the NG and PMO under LOI No. 1295, subject to the approval by higher authorities as
may be required by law or regulation.

On April 15, 2015, the Department of Finance (DOF) served PNCC a Statement of Account
informing that its outstanding obligations were due and demandable, and that there is no
longer any basis to considerlhe conversion into equtty of the subjed obligations under LOI

No. 1295.

Taking into consideration thetimethat had elapsed, togetherwith the DOJ opinion, the OGCC

opinion and the DOF demand, we believe that the planned mnvercion of debts to equity is a

The unconverted debt of P5.552 billion increased to P68.667 billion and P67.880 billion as of
Deember 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, as shown in the Statement of Accounts issued
by PMO and the Status of BTr Advances issued by the BTr both as of December 31 ,2019
and 2018. The increase consists mainly of interest and othercharges. The said amounts were
not reognized by PNCC as liability in its books resulting in the understatement of total
liabilities and overstatement of total equity both by P68.667 billion and P67.880 billion as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, res@ively. The accumulated deficit is also underctated by
P63.115 billion and P62.308 billion as of December31,2019 and 2018, respeciively.

We conducted our audits in accordance wilh lntemational Standads of Suprcme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). Our rcsponsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audito/s ResponsDilrfies for the Audit of the Financial Sfafemenfs section of our reporl. We
are independent of PNCC in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Govemment Auditors
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance wtth these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Adrerse Opinion secf,ion, we have determined
that there is no other key audit mdterto communicate in our report.

O0rer lnfiormation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the PNCC's Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form No.
20-lS, SEC Form 17-A and Annual Reprt for the year ended December 31,2019 but does
not indude the financial statements and our audito/s report thereon. The SEC Form No. 20-
lS, SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report forthe year ended December 31, 2019 are expec{ed
to be made available to us afterthe date of this audilofs report.



Our opinion on the financial statements does not @ver the other information and will not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon'

ln connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified abovewhen it becomes available and, in doing so, considerwhetherthe
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audits, or othenrise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Managementand Those Gharged wlth Govemanoo forthe Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance wilh PFRSs, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the PNCC's

aOitity-to continue as a going oonoem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

@ncem and using the going @noem basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the PNCC or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are respnsible for overceeing the PNGC's financial reporting
process.

Audito/s Responsibilities fiorthe Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec{ives are to obtain reasonable assuran@ about whetherthe financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assuranoe,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conduc{ed in accordance with lSSAls will always detect a
material misstatement when il exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or enor and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSSAls, vve exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and apprcpriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentiations, or the ovenide of intemal control.

o

o Obtain an underctanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the PNCC's intemalcontrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

a
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a

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going @ncem basis of
accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events orconditions that may cast significant doubt on the PNCC's ability

to continue as a going @ncem. lf we conclude that a matedal uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our audilofs report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modtry our opinion. Our condusions
are based on the audit evidenoe obtained up to the date of our audito/s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the PNCC to cease to continue as a going conoem.

Evaluate the overal! presentation, struc'ture and oontent of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other mdters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant auditlndings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our addit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguads.

From the matters communicated with those cfrarged with govemanoe, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audil of the financial statements of the cunent
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditot's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disdosure about the matter or when, in
extreme rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to out-
weigh the public interest benefrts of such communication.

Report on Mrer Lqal and Rqulalory Requirenwt6

Our audits were conduc'ted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 37 to the financial
statements is presented for the purpose of filing with the Bureau of lntema! Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and has been subjeded to the auditing procedures applied in
our audits of basic financial statements. Because of the significance of the matter described
in the Basrs for Adrerse Opinion section, it is inappropriate to and we do not express an
opinion on the information refened to above.

coiimlssloN oN AUDrT

/**,vitt*'
E,*MOI V. DE VILLA
Acting Supervising Auditor

August 17,202A



PHILIPPINE NATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

STATEilENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Philippine National Construction Corporation (PNCC) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the
schedules attached therein, forthe years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, in accordance
with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control
as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
PNCC's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concem and using the going con€rn basis of accounting unless Management either
inlends to liquidate the PNCC or to cease operdions, or has no realistic altemative hut to do
so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the PNCC's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Direetors reviews and appruves the financial sffiements, induding the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders and other users.

The Commission on Audit has audited the financial statements of the PNCC in
accordanoe with the lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit lnslitutions, and in its report to
the Board of Directors, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

HERC c. co, JR.
Chairman the Board

Ut),-!,ru
cRrsTIT M. MEDTAVTLLO
Head, ilreasuryand CEO

AU6 t? 2020
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

STATEiIENT OF iIANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of the Phiiippine l{ational Construction Corporation is responsibie for ali
information and representations contained in the Annual lncome Tax Retum for the year ended
December31,2019. Management is likewise responsibleforallinformation and representations
contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual lncome Tax Retum covering
the same reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but
not limited to the value added tax and/or percentage tax retums, withholding tax returns,
documentary stamp tax retums, and any and all othertax returns.

ln this regard, the Management affirms that the attached Board Approv&Audited Financiat
Sfafemenfs as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 and the accompanying Annual
lncorne Tax Return are in accordance with the books and records of Philippine National
Construdion Corporation, complete and correct in all material respects. Management likewise
affirms that:

(a) The Annual lncome Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the National lnternal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations
and other issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of lntemal
Revenue;

(b) Any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of
financial statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation
of the income tax retum pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as
reconciling items and maintained in the company's books and records in accordance
with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant
issuances; and

(c) the Philippine National Construction Corporation has filed all applicable tax returns,
reports, and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the
reporting period, and alltaxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and
payabie have been paid for the reporting period, except those eontesterj in good
faith.

TU,,"fl'
CR M. MEDIAVILLO
Head,

KM. 15 EAST SERVICE ROAD, BICUTAN, PARANAQUE CITY METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES - ZIP CODE 17OO
FAX O.P. 846-0591; DTRECT L|NE : 846-0209 : TRUNK L|NE : 846-3045



PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTTON CORPORATION

STATEITIENTS OF FiNANCIAL POSMON
December 3{, 2019 and 2018
(ln Philippine Peso)

Notes December3l,
2019

Deoamber 31, January 1,

2018
(As restated)

2018
(As restate0

ASSETS

GurrcntAsse6
Cash
Short-term investments
Receivables, net
lnventories
Other cunent assets

4.3,7
8

4.3,I
4.8,10

11

13t,697,373
{,186,189,29)

383,200,749
3,892,520r

205,158,385
730,179,490
466,697,972

3,709,987

145,467,935

643,559,929
446,627,886

3,420,610
7591

Cuflent Assets

Non€unent Assets
lnvestment
lnvestment property

Property and equipment net
Defened tax assets

4.10,12
4.11,13
4.12,14
4.21,31

15

926,766,952
33,847,159,091

1,512,999,825
38,810,560

926,990,952
14,740,596,334

658,570,260
40,978,1'13

926,950,952
14,740,757,576

665,179,677
38,731,824

1 41

Other non-cunent net
Total Non-Gurent A$ets

I

38.23{872.570 17.970.479.805 17,808,137.43TOTALASSETS

UABILITIES

Gunpnt Liabilities
Financial liabilitiles
Other financial liabilities
lnter-agency payables

Trust liabilities
Defened creditduneamed income

16

17
't8

19

20

{4865,/t88
9,8(8,008,816

l,gg5,3o2
25,298,845

13,890,666
9,548,006,516

19,115,429

39,363,786

23,258,485
9,290,004,216

13,668,644

43,625,984
119 179

10,582,r07,68:t 4,593,U4,240 4,595,207,954

732

Non€unent Liabilities
Defened tax liabilities
Trust liabilities

4.21,31.
19

TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,651,779,690 14,243,311,385 13,994,730,091

EQUITY 17,583,092,880 3,727,168,420 3,813,407,352

TOTAL LTABILITIES AND EOUITY 38,23dE72,570 17,970,479,805 17,808,137,443

The notes on p?ges 1 O to 85 form paft of these financiel staferrrorrts.
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSN'E NCOME
For the Years Ended Deeembor 31, 2019, 201E and 2017

(ln Philippine Peso)

Notes Docember 31,
20ts

December 31, December 31,

20172018
(As resteted)

lncome
Service and business income
Gains

1.17,21
25

4.17.fr

2Tl,A$,Wl
{9,107,253,E69

291,996,301
222,W7

1.W.542

326,928,052

?,846,475,'f69
63-623.171Other income

Total lncome 19.3t8.8E1,E85 293,E64,150 3.211.024,492

Expenses
Personnel services
Maintenance ard other operatirp expenses

Financial expenses
Penalty cha$es on unpaid concession fee
Bank cfiarges

Direct costs

4.18,27
4-18,28

4.15,17
4.18

(43,400,432)

(44,3'15,387)

(25E,002,300)
(7,5it01

(46,3se,548)

(42,U2,oft)

(2sE,002,300)
0

(41,785,081)

(31,515,2E9)

(2s6,002,400)

Q,710)
4.1 29

Total

lncome (Lossl Bsforc Tar 1E,9E+073,013 (83,208,108) 2,879,y2,61
lncome tax
Net lncome (Loss)

1.21 31 0

13,252,855,E13 (83,20E,10E)

Other inconre

frre nofes o,? p{los loto 86fonn p€flofthesE llnandel sfderrrerrts.

1

Ilncomg
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year: Ended December 3{, 2019, 20{8 and 2017
(ln Philippine Peso)

Notes Decambar3l,
20{9

December3l,
2018

(As restated)

December 31,
2417

CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERANNG ACTIVITIES

Gash lnflowg
Collection of income/nevenue 2#,511Jd,7 196,369,967 224,1S1,956

Collection of receivable {00,519,510 0 0
other rcceipts 185,360,514 37,289,364 37,811,511

TotalGash lnflom 501,39/ti76l 233,659,331 262,C0,2,87

Cash Outflows
Payment of expenses (189,082,(n8l $45,2U,453) (126,015,141)
Release of fund fransfers

Total Gach Outflowt

i,let Gash Provided by Operatlng Aclivitic 3281133,977 83,95't,666 132,695,298

CASH INFLOWS FROM IiIVESNNG ACTMIIES

Cash lnflows
Receipt of cash dividends 21.1 4{1,6{6,102 55,570,(X0 58,755,216
Receipt of intercst eamed 18,{81,{04 6,738,925 6,056,200
Proceeds frcm sale of plopertv and equipment 751,5fl1 776.130 1.194,311

TotalGash lnflows 57,5t10,(E0 63,085,065 66,(n5,727

Gash Outrlowt
Placement in money market (458,fl19,7,00) (86,619,562) (225,723,6il)
Purchase of and

Total Gash

Net Cash Used in lnvEsting Ac0wes

71

(398,92'l,9Egl e4,261,2'l6l (160,436,769)

NET TNCREASE (DECREASE) tN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

(70,i161,0{21

205.158.385
59,690,450

1'$.'t67.935
(27,741,471)
173.209.'[(b

CASH AT END OF YEAR 7 134,,697,373 205.158.385 145./m7.935

The notes on pqes 10to 85fom part of thesefinancial sta(emenfs.
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORFORANON
NOTES TO FTNANQTAL STATETENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORIIATION

The Corporation was originally incorporated underthe name of Construc-tion Development
Corporation of the Philippines (CDCP) in 1966 for a term of 50 yearc. lts Articles of
lncorporation and By Laws were approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) on November 22,1%6 under SEC Registration No. 30939 and its ac'tual operation
started on April 16, 1967. The pfimary purpose of the Corporation is to undertake general
contracting business with privde parties, govemment agencies, and instrumentalities
relative to the construdion of infrastrudure projecis and to engage in other related services
in a manner that will contribute to the economic development of the country. CDCP
eventually rose to be one of the countrt's foremost constpction companies with extensive
operations in the Philippines, the Middle East, and otherASEAN countries.

On March 31, 1977, Presidential Decree (PD) 1113 granted CDCP the franchise to
operate, construct, and maintain tollfacilities in the North and South Luzon Tollways for a
period of 30 yearc. (That franchise expired on May 1, 2007 .) PD 1 1 13 was amended by
PD 1894 in 1983 to include, among otherc, the Metro Manila Expressray (MME) to serve
as an additional artery in the transportation of trade and commerce in the Metro Manila
Area and gave the Corporation another period of 30 years Trom the completion of the
project."

On May 7, 1981, Letter of lnstruc{ion (LOl) 1136 was issued mandating the National
Development Company (NDC) to invest in the Corporation by way of capital infusion in
the amount of P250 million.

On February 23,1983, then President Ferdinand E. Marcos issued LOI 1295, direciing
the creditor Govemment Financial lnstitutions (GFls) to convert into CDCP shares of stock
the following: (1) all of the direct obligations of CDCP and those of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, including, but not limiled to loans, credils, accrued interests, fees and
advances in any currency outstanding as of Deoember 31, 1982; (2) the direc't obligations
of CDCP maturing in 1983; and (3) obligations maturing in 1983 which were guaranteed
by the GFls. With the implementation of LOI 1295, the GFls became the majority
stockholder of CDCP.

The amount of the debt to be onverted into equity was around P7 billion. However, only
P1.4 billion of the debt was issued shares of stocks while the remaining P5.6 billion was
left unconverted.

On December 7, 1983, SEC approved the increase of the Corporation's authorized capilal
stockfrom P1.6 billion loP2.7 billion in accordancewith LOI 129S.

CDCP was later renamed as Philippine National Construction Corporation (the
Corporation) to reflecf, the Phitippine Govemments stockholding, and became a
govemment-acquired asset corporation. Consequently, the various GFls were given seats
in the Board of Direc{ors of the Corporation and pailicipated in its management.
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ln 1986, under Proclamation No. 50, the Corporation was placed underthe Committee on
Privatization (CgP) and the Asset Privatization Trust (APT). Also in 1986, under
Administrative Order No. &[, certain assets of the Philippine Export and Foreign Loan
Guarantee Corpomtion (Philguarantee) and the NDC were transfened to the National
Govemment (NG) which also assumed certain liabilities of both Philguarantee and NDC.
A total of P1.918 billion was trcnsferred to the NG.

By virtue of LOI 1136 and 1295, 55.72 per cent of the Corporation's equity was held by
the APT (now the Privatization Management Office or PMO), which was created on
December 8, 1986 by virtue of Proclamation No. 50. The other 21.25 per cent was held
by the Govemment Seruice lnsurance System (GSIS) and the Land Bank of the
Philippines (LBP)with 20.96 perentand 0.29 percent, respectively. The remaining 23.03
per cent of the Corporation's equity is under private ownership.

ln 1988, purcuant to Administrative Order Nos. 14 a4d 8[, Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP), Philippine National Bank (PNB), Philguarantee, and NDC transfened
their interests in the Corporation to the Republic of the Philippines which in tum conveyed
them to the APT (now PMO) for disposition to the private sector pursuant to the
govemmenf s privatization program.

From 1987 to 2001 , the Corporation still engaged in construction business but this resulted
in losses. lt veered awayfrom ac'tive involvement in construction operations, and focused
more on the operation and maintenance of its tollways. lt entered into Joint Venture
Agreements (JVAs) that resulted in the division of the Tollways into the South Luzon
Expressway (SLEX), the North Luzon Expressuray (NLEX) and the Skyway.

ln August 1995, the Corporation entercd into a Business and Joint Venture Agreement
(BJVA) with lndonesia's P.T. Citra Lamtoro Gung Persada (CITRA) and formd the joint
venture @mpany, Citra Metro Manila Tollways Corporation (CMMTC), which was granted
the Supplemental Toll Operation Agreement (STOA) to finance, design and construct the
South Metro Manila Skyway (SMMS) Project. The project covercd the construc{ion of the
9.S-kilometer elevated ioad from Biiutan, Parafiaque Cityto the trilakati Central Business
Distric't, as wel! as the rehabilitation of the l3.$kilometer section of the SLEX from
Alabang to Magallanes. The PNCC's wholly-owned subsidiary, PNCC Skyway
Corporation (PSC), originally managed the operation and maintenance of the SMMS
Projec't. October 1999 marked the start of the full operation of the entire Skyway Stage 1 .

ln 1997, the Corporation entered into a JVA with the Firct Philippine lnfrastruc.ture
Development Corporation (FPIDC) for the rehabilitation of the NLEX. The Manila North
Tollways Corporation (MNTC) was incorporated as its joint venture company. MNTC was
granted the STOA in June 1998 to finance, design, construct, operate and maintain the
toll roads, toll facilities and other facilities generating toll-related income in respec.t of the
NLEX. The FPIDC was acquired by the Metro Pacific lnvestments Corporation (MPIC) in
2008. The operation and maintenance (O&M) of the NLEX is with the Tollways
Management Corporation (TMC). Following the issuance of the Toll Operation Permit
(TOP), commercialoperations started on February 1, 2005.

ln 2002, by virtue of Executive Order No. 148, the Corporction was attached, Tor policy
and program. coordination and for general supeMsion", to the Department of Public Works
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and Highways (DPWI-|), "with which it has allied func'tions, especially in the development
of road networks wtthin the countnf.

ln 2004, as per Executive Order No. 331, the Corporation was placed underand attached
to the Department of Trade and lndustry (DTl) "pending privatization".

ln February 2006, the Corporation entered into a JVA with Malaysian Corporation MTD
Manila Expressways, lnc. (MTDME) and fomred its joint venture company South Luzon
Tollway Corporation (SLTC). By virtue of the STOA entered into with the Toll Regulatory
Board (TRB) and the Corporation, SLTC committed to undertake allworks required forthe
SLEX Project including its total financing without sovereign guarantees and with the
recovery of its hvestment being in the form of the colldion of toll by the Manila Toll
Expressway Systems, lnc. (MATES), ils O&M company. The SLEX Rehabilitation and
Upgrading Projec{ consisted of the rehabilitation and expansion of the existing toll road
from Alabang to Calamba (28.53 km) and the constru$ion of the extension of the SLEX
to Sto. Tomas, Batangas (5.81 km) wilh the associated spur to the Southem Tagalog
Arterial Road (1.79 km). SLTC was granted a 3&year concession period from February
2006 to February 2036. lt includes the period of construc'tion trhich began in June 20ffi.

On April 27, 2007, TRB issued a Toll Operation Certificate (TOC) to the Corporation for
the O&M of the SLEX. The said authority from TRB, pursuant to its powers under its
charter (PD 1112), allowed the Corporation to operate and maintain the SLEX and to
collesttollfees, in the interim, after itsfranchise expiration on Apri! 30,2007. The effec'tive
date of the TOC commenced on May 1,2007, but in no case to exceed the date of
substantial completion of the SLEX Project Toll Roads underthe STOA dated February 1,

2006, or unless sooner revoked by TRB. ln 2010, the operation was officially tumed over
to SLTC and MATES.

ln December 2007, the Gorporation entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
with CMMTC and PSC where the Corporation was to have been provided P2 million by
CMMTC in order for the Corporation to subscribe to the par value up to 20 per cent of the
total outstanding capital stock of the Skyway Opelation and Maintenance Corporation
(SOMCO), the O&M company. PSC tumed over the operation and maintenance of the
SMMS Project to SOMCO which operates the 16.2-kilometer elevated tollway from
Buendia to Alabang and the 13.S-kilometer atgrade toll rcad from Magallanes to Alabang.

On November 14, 2008, a Subscription Agreement was executed by and among the
Alabang-Sto. Tomas Development, lnc. (ASDI), NDC and the Corporation, wherein the
Corporation subscribed to 12,500 shares from the unissued portion of the 150,000 shares
authorized capital stock (with parvalue of Pl,000 pershare) of ASDI, a then wholly-owned
subsidiary of NDC which was incorporated to undertake the Daang Hari-SLEX connector
road. On December 3, 2010, the SEC approved the application for increase in capital of
ASDI, and on the same year, the Corporation subscribed 51 per cent shares of ASDI,
making ASDI its subsidiary.

ln 2009, a MOA for the Advance Works on the Daang Hari-SLEX Link Road Prcject
(DHSLRP) was entered by and between ASDI and the Coryoration. The Corporation was
designated as the Main Tumkey Contracior rcsponsible for undertakirtg the Advance
Works and torthe implementation of the design and the construclion of the Road Projec't,
which consists of a toll road facility connecting Daang Hari Road in Cavite to the SLEX
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near Susana Heights Interchange. The projec't was 25 per cent complete when DPWH,
purcuant to its Public Private Partnership (PPP) mandate, took over the project for the
purpose of bidding it out. ASD|was to be reimbursed with its cost plus a premium. Bidding
of the road project was undertaken by DPWH in December 2011 and wab subsequently
awarded to Ayala Corporation (AC) in the same month. On April 2,2012, a Ded of
Absolute Sale was executed between ASDI and AC for the tumover of the project.

On April 27 ,2OO9, CMMTC received the Notice to Proceed (NTP) from TRB and it officially
started the SMMS Project Stage 2, the 6.8-kilometer elevated expressway from Bicutan
to Alabang. ln May 2011, Skpvay Stage 2 was completed with toll facilities and other
ancillary requirements already in place.

ln 2009 and 2010, in the case of Emesto B. Francisco vs. TRB, PNCC et al. (G.R. Nos.
166910, 169917, 173630, and 183599, Ocilober 19,2010 or the Fnncisco Case) and in
the case of Strategic Alliance Development CorporatioQ vs. Radstock Securities Limited
et al. (G.R. No. 178158, December 4, 2009 or the Radsfock Case), the Supreme Court
(SC) ruled and dedared that with the expiration of the Corporation's franchise, the toll
assets and facilities of the Corporation were automatically tumed over, by operation of
!aw, to the NG at no cost and consequenfly, this inevitably resulted in the NG owning too
the toll fees and the net income derived, aifter May 1,2A07 flom the toll assets and
facilities, including the Gorporation's percentage sharc in thetollfees collected bythe Joint
Venture Companies (JVCs) cunently operating the tollways, including NLEX and Skyvay.

The SC, in its Resolution dated April 12, 2011 and in connection with the Fmnasco Case,
direded TRB, with the assistance of the Commission on Audit (COA), to prepare and
finalize the lmplementing Rules and Guidelines (lRG) relative to the determination of net
income remiftable by the Corpoetion to the NG. An interim rules and guidelines was
issued on March 9,2012, for the remittance by the JVCs to the National Treasury of the
net income that are supposed to be remitted by the JVCs from the revenues of the SLEX,
NLEX and Skpvay in accordance with the Franq.sco Case. The Corporation has been
receiving 10 per cent of the revenue and dividend shares from the JVCs, while 90 per cent
is remitted by the JVCs to the National Treasury.

!n February 2l12,the Corporation's shares in JVCs, i.e. CMMTC, MNTC, TMC, SLTC and
MATES, were tumed over to the govemment through a Deed of Compliance to Transfer
Shares of Stocks to the NG in compliance with the SC decision in the Fnncisco Case
(Note 3, New Projecis and OtherSignificant lnfomation).

The impac{ of the aforesaid SC Decision on the Radsfock and Fnncisco Cases has been
appropriately reflec{ed in the fi nancial statements.

In 2013, the Corporation was attached and placed underthe Office of the President of the
Republic of the Philippines (OP) from DTI per Executive Order No. 141. The Corporation
entered into Joint Venture Projectswith P.T. Citra Lamtoro Gung Percada (CITRA) forthe
implementation of the Metro Manila Skylvay (MMS) Stage 3 Project and the Metro Manila
Expressway (MME), or C-6 Project (Note 3, New Projects and CIher Significant
lnformation).

The Govemance Commission forGOCCs (GCG), in its memonandum forthe Presidentof
the Republic of the Philippines dated June 24, 2013, re@mmended the abolition of the
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five subsidiaries of the Corporation, namely: Alabang-Sto. Tomas Development, lnc.
(ASDI), DISC Qontrac'tors, Builders and GeneralSeMces, lnc. (DCBGSI), Traffic Control
Products Corporation (TCPC), CDCP Farms Corporation (CDCP FC) and Tierra Fac'torc
Corporation (TFC), which was approved by the President through a memorandum from
the Executive Secretary dated August 7, 2014. The Corpoetion is in the process of
abolishing the five subsidiaries.

ln August 2013, CDCP founder, Rodolfo M. Cuenca, filed a case against the TRB, COA,
the Corporation, MNTC and MATES, seeking the remittance of revenues and dividends
on the toll road projects to the Corporation alleging that TRB has not finalized the lRG.
The Makati Regional Trial Court (RTC) 'enjoined petitioner TRB and PNCC from
implementing the TRB's lnterim Rules and Guidelines dated 22 March 2012." ln a
Resolution dated August 4,2014, the SC issued a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO)
against the Makati RTC's TRO, thus sustaining the status quo that revenues and dividends
be remitted direc'tly to the National Govemment (NG). ..

On March 3, 2015, the Corporation submitted its Performanoe Agreement to GCG. On
December 1,2015,the Makati RTC issued a Writ of Preliminary lnjundion for Civil Case
No. 15-3&4 in favor of Forum Holdings Corporation (Forum) restraining the GCG, its
representatives and fficers, and the Corporation's Board of Dircc'tors from implementing
the said Performance Agreement. The Corporation is not impleaded as a pafi to the case
filed by Forum.

ln January 2016, three Govemment SeMee lnsurance System (GSIS) memberc filed a
case against the Corporation's Board of Directors, Memberc of the Board of Trustees of
the GSIS and GCG seeking to enjoin the implementation dthe Performance Agreement.
On February 12, 2016, the Parafiaque RTC ordered the re-raffle of the case to a
commercial court. On July 12, 2016, the Parafiaque RTC Branch 258 ordered the
dismissalof the case for being a nuisance or harassment suit. The three GSIS members
filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari dated September 12,2016 with SC. On February
22,2017, the SC issued a Resolution denying the petition and upholding the dismissal of
the suit by the Parafiaque RTC.

Pursuantto RepublicAct 10149, the Corporation is listed as a non-chartercd Govemment-
Orned or Controlled Corporation (GOCC) under the superuision of the GCG, which is the
central advisory, monitoring, and oversight bocly of the NG underthe OP.

On June 22, 2016 and Ocfober 17, 2016, the Corporation's Board of Direc{ors and its
Shareholderc, respec'tively, approved the amendment to the 4th Article of the Articles of
lncorporation to extend the coryorate term for 50 years from November 22,2016, which
amendment was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 21,
2016.

The registered office address of the Corporation is Km. 15, East Service Road, Bicutan,
Paraflaque City.
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2. GOING GONCERN

In December 2019, a novel stnain of corona virus (COVID-I9) was reported in Wuhan,
China. On March 11,2020, the World Health Oqanization officially declared COVID-19,
the disease caused by nwel coronavirus, a pandemic. This pandemic had significant
impac-ts not only on health concems but also on business rctivities around the globe.

The COVID-19 pandemic forced the National Govemment to impose Enhanced
Community Quarantine starting March 17,2020 in Luzon, including Metro Manila. The
said community quarantine has the effec't of Iockdown as the govemment prohibited the
movement of people, other goods and closure of business to control the COVID-19
pandemic.

The immediate impact of the communily quarantine due to COVID-19 pandemic in the
operationaland financial performance of PNCC are asfollows:

1. PNCC's revenue shares in the toll road collections are expected to decrease than
usual due to the travel restrictions set by the National Govemment and Local
Govemment Units (LGUs) resulting in the decrease of toll revenues of its joint venture
partners.

2. The target completion date of the on-going toll road projects will likely be moved to a
later date due to suspension of construc'tion prcjeds during the community quarantine.

3. On a positive note, the Management is not aware of any cases of COVID'19 infection
among its employees and cunently has an appropriate response plan in place.

4. ln addition, PNCC is expected to generate additional revenue from the on-going toll
road projects, such as the Metro Manila Skyuvay Stage 3 project by the end of 2020.

ln general, Management assessed that the COVID-19 pandemic brought minor to
moderate impact to PNCC's operations and financial performance but cannot be
considered enough reason to close down its operations in the succeeding years.

3, NEW PROJECTS AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT I]{FORiIATION

The Corporation holds updated partnerchips for new Toll Road projects. The projects will
enable the Gorpoldion to generate sufficient cash flor from dividends and revenue shares
from the JVCs for the next 30 years.

Metrc Manila Skyray $il5) Siage 3 Proi*t

The MMS Stage 3 Project is an elevated expressway which starts from Buendia, Makati
City to Balintawak, Quezon City and will be extended and eventually connected to the
North Luzon Expressway (NLEX).

The projec* will connec{ the South Luzon Expressray (SLEX) and the North Luzon
Expressway (NLEX) with a length of about 18.68 kitometers. The MMS Stage 3 elevated
expressway-intendsto ease and decongesttrafficthrough its designed access ramps and
interchanges strategically located as follows: Buendia Avenue (South Super Highway,
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Makati City), Pres. Quirino Avenue (Malate, Manila), Plaza Dilao (Paco Manila),
Nagtahan/Aurorg Boulevad (Manila), E. Rodriguez Avenue (Quezon City), Quezon
Avenue (Quezon Crty), Sgt. Rivera St. (Quezon Cily) and in the NLEX.

The construction implementation of the MMS Stage 3 was designed and divided into five
(5) sections as described below:

PrciectSections Approximate
Length (kms)

1

2a
2a1
2b
3
4
5

Buendia/Makati to Quirino Ave./Plaza Dilao
Plaza Dilaoto Tomas Claudio
Tomas Claudio to Old Sta Mesa
Tomas Claudio to Aurora Blvd
Aurora Blvd to Quezon Avenue
Quezon Avenue to EDSA Balintavvak \
EDSA Balintawak to NLEXBalintarak Rampway

3.76
0.96
1.30
3.93
2.71
4.46
2.11

{9.23

On May 3, 2011, P.T. Citra Lamtorc Gung Percada (CITRA) and the Corporation
submitted to Toll Regulatory Boad (TRB) an Updated Joint Venture lnvestment Proposal
for the said projec{ purcuant to one of the llVhereas Clauses" of the South Metro Manila
Skyrtay (SMMS) SupplementalTollway Operation Agreement (STOA) dated November
27, 1995, as amended on July 18, 2007. Pursuant to its mandate and authority granted
under Presidential Decree No. 1112, TRB revialed, evaluated and approved the Updated
Joint Venture lnvestment Proposalfor MMS Stage 3 Projecl.

On January 9,2012, CITRA and the Corporation executed a Supplement to the Business
and Joint Venture Agreement (Supplement to BJVA) which govems the implementation
of the MMS Stage 3 Projed and Stage 4 Project also knorn as the Metro Manila
Expressway (MME). The parties also executed the Second Supplement to the Business
and Joint Venture Agreement (Second Supplement to BJVA) which contains the terms
and onditions forthe implementation of both MMS and MME.

On September 6, 2012, the Restated Second Supplement to the Business and Joint
Venture Agreement (Restated Second Supplement to BJVA), which contains the entire
agreement of the parties and embodies the final terms and conditions for MMS, was
executed.

On November 16, 20l2,following Sec{ion 1 of the Restded Second Supplementto BJVA,
Citra Central Expressway Corporation (CCEC), the joint venture company, was
incorporated as the vehide to implement the financing, design, and construction of the
MMS.

Underthis agreement, the Corporation is provided with the following:

20 per cent equity in CCEC, 10 per ent of which is 'Free Carnf i,e. not paid for by
the Corporation and can never be diluted; while the other 10 per cent is to be paid for.
ln case of the Corporation's inability to fund the 10 per cent, CITRA needs to get the
Corporation's approval to nominate another shareholder. The 10 per ent inilial
investment in CCEC amounted to P12.5 million.
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Projected share in gross revenues amounting to about P35.06 billion for the duration
of the operatbn period (30 years);

Projected share in net profits amounting to about P2'1.42 billion forthe dumtion of the
operation period (30 years);

One permanent seat with one non-voting direc'tor to the Board of CCEC, regardless of
its shareholdings; and

Membership in all Boad Committees and Chairmanship of the Board's Audit
Committee.

The Gorporation agreed to forego any equity share in the operation and maintenan@
(O&M) provided the CCEC remains a oost center and not a prcfit center.

On September 26, 2}13,the STOA goveming the design, mnstruction, operation and
maintenance of the SMMS Stage 3 Project was approved by the Ofiice of the President
of the Republic of the Philippines

The construc-tion of the project is ongoing and the overall accomplishment as of
December 31, 2019 is 74.96 per cent. Sec{ion 1 (Buendia to Quirino Ave.lPlaza Dilao) is
now partially opened. The whole alignment induding the ramps are projected to be
operational by end dt 2020.

Metro ltanlla Ercprasisway UMq S@e 1or GO Proj*l

The Southeast Metro Manila Expressray Prcject is the Phase 1 of the C-6 Expressway,
also known as Metro Manila Skyway Stage 4. lt is a32.67 km combination of mostly at-
grade and elevated expressway stretching from Skyrvay FTl, Paranaque City allthe way
to Batasan Complex.

Proiect Phase I Section Apprcximate Length
ftml

Phase {
Sedion 1 Skurav FTI to'C5/Dieoo Silans 2.39
Sedion 2 C5/Dieoo Silans to C6ffaguis 3.20
Sedion 3 C6ffasuis to Ortioas Ave. Extension 11.78
Sedion 4 Ortigas Ave. Ext. to Marcos Highway 5.34
Seciion 5 Marcos Hiohwavto Tumana Bridqe 6.90
Seciion 6 Tumana Bridqe to Batasan Complex 3.06

32.87

Phase { ProJect Descripfion:

The Metro Manila Skyway Stage 4 or C€ Phase 1 is a 2 x 3 lanes toll road project
approximately 32.67 km in length that is intended to run from Skyway/FTl in Taguig City
to Batasan Complex in Quezon City. The Project is divided into 6 Sec{ions as follors:
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1. Section 1: SkWvay/FTlto C-SlDiego Silang

Sec{ion 1 connects to the existing Skyway at FTI and ends in G5 with a total length of
2.39 km and allare elevated.

2. Section 2: C-S/Diego Silang to C-6/Tagug

The Section 2 of the projecl (C-S/Diego Silang to C€ffaguig) designed alignmentwas
changed and realigned due to Right of Way (ROW) issue. A conceptual design of the
proposed realignment, transfening Section 2 of the SEMME projed to pass along the
Circumferential Road 5 (C-S/C.P. Garcia Ave.) and Pasig River from the origina!
alignment that traverses residential areas in Brgy. Pinagsama in Taguig Ciy. The
reilignment will start from the end of Seciion 1 marked by the C-5 lnterchange in the
area of Pamayanang Diego Silang, and shallcontinue along C.P. Garcia Ave. towards
the area of Kalayaan Ave., where it tums right coursing along Pasig River and
continues untilCircunrferentialRoad 6 (C-6) in the a'fea of Napindan in Taguig.

3. Section 3: C-6/Taguig to Ortigas Ave. Extensbn

Section 3 is mixed elevated and at-grade, which mnnec;ts C-Gffaguig to Ortigas
Avenue Extension in Taytay, passing through the Manggahan Floodway with a total
length of 11.783 km including a 3.076 km viaduct.

4. Section 4: Ortigas Ave. Extension to Maros Highway

Section 4 is atgrade and conneds Ortigas Avenue Extension in Taytay to Marcos
Highway in Antipolo, with a total length of 5.337 km.

5. Sec'tion 5: Marcos Highway to Tumana Bridge

Section 5 is at-grade and oonnec{s Marcos Highway in Antipolo to Tumana Bridge,
with a total length of 6.90 km.

6. Section 6: Tumana Bridge to Batasan Complex

Secfion 6 is mixed elevated and at-grde which connects Tumana Bridge to the
Batasan Complex with a totat length of 3.055 km induding 1.511 km viaduct.

On February 14, 2014, the Restated Supplement to the Business and Joint Venture
Agreement (Restated Supplement to BJVA) forthe MME Project was executed.

On February 17,2014, following Seciion 1 of the Restated Supplement to BJVA, Citra
lntercity Tollways Inc. (ClTl), the joint venture company, was incorporated as the vehicle
to implementthefinancing, design, and construcfion of the MME.

Pattemed from the MMS Ptoject, the MME Prcject will provide the Corporation with the
following:

20 per cent equity in ClTl, 10 per cent of which is "Free Carn/ i.e. not paid for by the
Corporation and can never be diluted. tn case of the Corporation's inability to fund the
10 per cent, CITRA needs to get the Corporation's apprcval to nominate another
shareholder;
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Projected share in gross revenues amounting to about P43.86 billion for the duration
of the operation period (30 yearc);

Projected share in net profits amounting to about P27 .21 billion for the duration of the
operation period (30 yearc);

One permanent seat and one non-voting direc*or to the Board of ClTl, regardless of
its shareholdings; and

Memberchip in all Board Committee's and Chairmanship of the Board's Audit
Committee.

On August 11, 2014, the STOA was approved by the Ofiice of the President of the
Republic of the Philippines. A groundbreaking cremony was held on January 8,2018
with government agencies led by the Department of Transportation (DOTr) and
Department of Public Works and Highways (DPWH).

Proiect Status:
o Construction on-going on C5 Section: 17 columns concreted from Pier 61 to 66.
o Submitted the 2 x 2 scheme to Toll Regulatory Board fiRB) fortheir approval.
. On-going activities on the acquisition of right-of-way (ROVV). Minimal progress in

ROWacquisition.
. Permit to Excavate secured in La Suerte area and West Service Rod,

Technological University of the Philippines and Philippine National Railways areas
. On-going Detailed Engineering Design for Section 2 realignment.

Revenue Shares from MMS Stase 3 and MME Staoe 4 Prciects

The Corporation will eam revenue shares on net toll revenue from these two new projects
at the following rates: 2.5 pr cent for the 1d 4 years; 3 per cent from the 5n to the 7n
year; 3.5 per cent from the Et' to the 10s yearl and 4 per ent from the 1 th year onwards.

P asig Rrver *pessway (PAREtc) P roJ*,t

The proposed Pasig River Expfessway Project alignment runs from the west of Metro
Manila, beginning at the areas of San Nicolas and lntramuros in Manila, where it connects
R-10. lt traverses the Pasig River until Nagtahan Bridge, where il tums right along Quirino
Avenue, and connec'ts with Metro Manila Skpvay Stage 3 (MMSS3) through the Plaza
Azul. From MMSS3, the alignment continues along the Pasig Riverthrough a connection
with MMSS3 alignment along San Juan River. The alignment then continues along the
Pasig River and intersects with: (i) Epifanio Delos Santos Avenue (EDSA) in the area of
Guadalupe in Makati and Boniin Mandaluyong and (ii) CircumferentialRoad 5 (C-5) in the
areas of West Rembo in Makati and Bagong llog in Pasig. The alignment terminates at
Circumferential Road 6 (C-6), where it connects wtth the South East Metro Manila
Expressway in the area of Taytay in the province of Rizal.

The proposed PAREX Projec{ is a two-directional elevated viaduct wtth 3 lanes in eactr
direc{ion. The estimated total length of the projed is 19.365 kilometers and the entire
alignment is divided into three segments.
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On November 11 ,z0lg,theassignment of PNCC's usufrucluary rights has been approved
by the Presidentof the Republic of the Philippines purcuant to the PNCC's franchise under
Presidential Decree No. 1894.

On November 26, 2019, San Miguel Holdings Corporation (SMHC) and PNCC entered
into a Business Joint Venture Agreement to undertake the proposed PAREx Project.

Queon - Bicol Fscpresway (Qubex)Boulh Luzon Toll Rog,d 5 (TRfi) Projed

The Qubex or TRS Project starts at the end point of the South Luzon Expressway Toll
Road 4 at Brgy. Mayao, Lucena City, Quezon and ends at Matnog, Sorcogon near the
Matnog Ferry Terminal. The total length of TRs is approximately 417 kilometers, and the
general route of the alignment is parallel to the existing Philippine National Railway,
Maharlika Highway and Padre Burgos National Road or Quirino Highway.

PNCC has chosen San Miguel Holdings Corporation 1SMHC1 as its Joint Venture Partner
in the said project pursuant to the Opinion No. 6, series of 2018 dated March 26, 2018 of
the Department of Justie confirming the right of PNCC not to bid out (1) the construc'tion,
operation and maintenanoe of tollways underits legislativefranchise, and (2) its choice of
Joint Venture Partnerc. On October 9, 2018, PNCC and SMHC executed a Business and
Joint Venture Agreement for the TRs Projed. The Office of the President, in its letter dated
Oc'tober 31, 2018, has approved the assignment of PNCC's usufructuary rights over the
proiect to the Joint Venture Corporation of PNCC and SMHC.

The SupplementalToll Operation Agreement (STOA) forthe TRS ptoject is cunently being
negotiated with TRB.

10 per cent Revenue Share from Toll Fee Collections and 10 per cent Share in Declared
Dividends from Joint Venture Companies (JVCs)

On March 22,2012, the TRB issued interim rules and guidelines covering the amount of
money the Corporation will receive in order to cover operating expenses in relation to the
Francisa and Radstod< Cases. Both the TRB and the Corporation agreed to a 10 per
cent revenue share from tollcollection fees and declared dividends from JVCs.

The Corporation receives the following revenue shares:

a 10 per oent of 6 per cent share on the Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC)
Gross Revenue;

10 per ent of 3.5 per cent share on the Citra Metro Manila Tollways Corporation
(CMMTC) Gross Revenue; and

a 10 per cent of 1.75 per cent share on the South Luzon Tollway Corporation (SLTC)
Gross Revenue.

The Corporation eamed total revenue shares from the abovementioned JVCs in the
amounts of P117.915 million, P115.871 million and P99.623 million in 2019, 2018 and
2017, respec'tively, while it eamed dividends from CMMTC amounting to P40.287 million,
P55.187 million and P57.94,6 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively (Note 24).
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Lease lncome

Lease income is derived from renting out investment propertyyu'hich includesthe Financial
CenterArea (FCA) in Pasay City and a propefi in Porac, Pampanga.

ln2017,the Board approved the minimum rentral rates of P240 and P200 persquare meter
for the covered portion and open spaoe, respec[ively, of the FCA Property. Total rent
income amounted to P29.097 million, P72.798 million and PI25.386 million in 2019, 2018
and2017, respedively (Note 24.2).

Equitv Participation in CMMTC

It is the position of the Corporation that it has equrty participation in CMMTC on the basis
of Presidential Decree (PD) 1894 and purcuant to the provisions of the SMMS
Supplemental Tollway Operation Agreement (STOA) Cded November 27,1995, which
was approved by then President fiOet V. Ramos. VVtrile the Corporation's franchise
expired on May 1 , 2007 , Section 2 of PD 1 894 provides that the Tranchise granted for the
Metro Manila Expressway and all extensions, linkages, stretches and diversion that may
be construded after the date of approval of this decree shall likewise have a term of thifi
(30) years commencing from date of completion of the projecf which the Supreme Court
affirmed in the Fnnciso Case.

The Ofrice of the Govemment Corpomte Counsel (OGCC) rendered its opinion that the
PD 1894 projec'ts (namely the SMMS - Skyrvay Stage 1 and 2 and MMS Stage 3 and
MME Stage 4) are 'dearly covered by a still existing congressional franchise. For the
same reason, too, the PD 1894 assets, facilities and shares are still held by PNCC." !t is
also the opinion of the Department of Justice (DOJ) that the Corporation still has a
subsisting non-exclusive legislative franchise under PD 1894 and that only assets'that
are related to its franchise under PD 1113 have accrued to the National Govemment (NG)
and thus, oughtto be tumed overto the NG.'

The shares in CMMTC werc tumed over to the NG by way of a Deed of Compliance of
Shares of Stock to the NG in February 2012. Hoyvever, in 2013, after having securcd the
opinions of both the OGCC and the DOJ regarding the validity of PD 1894, the Corporation
requested CMMTC to refrain frgm transGning the shares of the Corporation to the NG
and refrain from remitting the dividends and share in gross revenues of CMMTC to the
NG. The matter is still awaiting actions from CMMTC, who has refened the matterto their
legal counsel. On the other hand, the Department of Finance (DOF) has requested for
clarification on the matter from the DOJ. Meanwhile, the shares still remain in the name
of the Corporation.

The Corporation shares in CMMTC are worth P551.87 million which is equivalent to 8.11
per cent of total outstanding shares of CMMTG. The dividends and revenue shares from
2008 to 2019 amount to P5.121 billion of which the Corporation received 10 per cent or
P512.093 million purcuant to the interim rules and guidelines issued by the TRB.
However, it is the position of the Corporation that all revenue and dividends arising from
its investment in CMMTC belong to the Corporation.
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lssuance of Final lmplementino Rules and Guidelines bvthe Toll Requlatorv Board ffRB)

A Supreme Court Resolution clarifying the automatic remittance to the NG of the toll fees
and net income derived from the Corponation's toll assets and facilities was issued in
relation to the Fra,nciscp Case. The Resolution direded the TRB, with the assistance of
Commission on Audit (COA), to "prepare and finalize the implementing rules and
guidelines relative to the determination of the net income remittable by PNCC to the
National Govemment and to prcceed with the same with dispatch."

On March 22,2012, TRB issued a Directofs Certificate approving the lnterim Rules and
Guidelines (lRG) for the remittance by the JVCs of the revenues of the SLEX, NLEX and
Skyway in accordance with the Francisco Case. As subsequently agreed upon, the
Corporation and TRB, as an interim arangement, set aside 10 per cent of all amounts
that are supposed to be remitted by the JVCs for remittance to the Corporation while 90
per cent goes to the National Treasury. The IRG also ptated that if the 10 per cent is in
ex@ss of what is allowed by the guidelines, the Corporation shall remit to TRB for the
National Treasury the excess amount. On the other hand, in case the 10 per cent is less
than what is allowed under the guidelines, the shortfall shall be deduc'ted in the next
remittance to be made by the JVCs.

It is the position of the Corporation that the "determination of the net income remittable by
it to the National Govemmenf should deduc{ penalty charges on unpaid concession fee
amounting to P258 million per year as part of its administrative expenses.

ln March 2013, the Corporation proposed to TRB that ovefiead and administrative
expenses plus the penalty charges be deducted from gross revenue from the Joint
Venture Agreements lncome'in oder to anive at the Ne{ lncome to be remitted to the NG.
A follow-up letter dated December 2, 2015 was sent. Another letter dated February 6,
2017 reiterating the Corporation's position on the computation of the net income to be
remitted to the NG was sent. The Corporation has booked penalty charges on unpaid
concession fees from 2010 to 2019 amounting to P5.242 billion.

The Corporation is still arvailing the issuance of the Final lmplementing Rules and
Guidelines from TRB.

Debt of P5.552 Billiorl.Bemained'Unconverted to Equitv

The Corporation's debt of P5.552 billion which remained unconverted to equity is treated
as part of equtty in the Corporation's books, instead of a tiability. The interest and penalties
unilaterally charged thereon bythe Privatization Management ffice (PMO/ Bureau of the
Treasury (BTr) amounting to P63.1 15 billion and P62.328 billion as of December 31,2019
and 2018 were not taken up in the Corporation's books.

The assertion that the P5.552 billion should be part of equity is supported by a Supreme
Cou4 ruling that recognizes the validity of Letter of lnstruction (LOl) 1295 confirming that
the P5.552 billion is no longer a debt but equity. The ffice of the Solicitor General (OSG)
and the Office of the Govemment Corporate Counsel (OGCC) have concuned with this
ruling.
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Pursuant to the mutual agreement betvveen the Corporation and the PMO, the issue
whether to convgrt the mentioned debt into equi$ was submifted to DOJ on June 21 , 2012
for arbitration.

On February 18, 2A14, the DOJ dismissed the Corporation's petition against the PMO.
The Corporation filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) with the DOJ on March 14,2014
which was denied by the DOJ on January 22,2015. Thereafter, the Corporation filed a
Supplement to the MR on May 28, 2015 which was likewise denied by the DOJ in its order
dated July 13, 2015.

On June 26,2015, the Corporation filed a Notice of Appealwilh the ffice of the President
of the Republic of the Philippines (OP) and filed the conesponding Appeal Memorandum
on July 27,2015.

The Corporation is awaiting the resolution of the OP onjts appeal.

Pavment of Corporation's Oblioation to the National Govemment

The Corporation sent a letter dated July 21,2015 to the OP recognizing its tiability to the
NG in the amount of P7.9 billion and proposing to "pay ofr the recognized obligations,
particularly given that the obligation to the TRB for unpaid concession fees canies with it
a penalty of two per cent per month." The Corporation is awaiting the decision of the OP.
ln December 2016, the Corporation remitted to the NG, through the BTr, the amount of
P566.3 million as partial payment for NG's outstanding sharc in the toll nsvenue for the
operation of the South Luzon Expressway (SLEX) under the Toll Opeetion Certificate
(TOC) from May 20071o April 2010 (Note 17.3).

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUIf,IIIARY OF SIGI{IFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Presentation of Financial Stiatements

The financialstatements of the Corporation were prepared using the historical cost
basis. The financial statements are prcsented in Philippine Peso, which is the
Corpoetion's funcflional cunency. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso
except othenrise indicated.

4.2 Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reoortino Standards

The financial statements of the Corporation were prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reprting standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by
the lntemational Standards Board (IASB), and approved by the Philippine Board of
Acountanry.

The financial statements as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and forthe yeas ended
Deoember 31 , 2019 and 2018 were approved and authorized for issue in accodance
with a resolution by the Board of Directors (BOD) on August 13,2020.
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4.3 Reoonition. Measurement and Classification of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities "

The Corporation recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements
of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. !n the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets,
recognition is done using settlement date accounting.

All financial instruments are inilially recognized at fair value of the consideration
given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). Except for financial
assets and financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), the initial measurement of financial instruments includestransaclion costs.

'Day 1'Difference

Where the transaciion price in a non-active mark& is different from the fairvalue of
other observable cunent markefi transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose vadables include only data from observable market, the
Corporation recognizes the difference between the transac-tion price and the fair
value (a 'Day 1' difference) in the statements of income unless it qualifies for
recognition as some othertype of asset. ln caseswherc data used is notobseruable,
the difference between the transac*ion price and model value is only recognized in
the statements of income when the inputs become obseruable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each transac'tion, the Corporation determines the
appropriate methd of recognizing the'Day 1'difference amount.

Financial Assefs

The Corporation classifies its financial assets, at initial recognition, in the following
categories: financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and financial assets at FVPL. The
classification depends on the business model of the Corporation for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow charrcteristics of the financial assets.
Financial assets are not redassified subsequent to initial recognition unless the
Corporation cfianges its business modelfor managing financial assets in which case
all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the reporting period
following the change in the business model.

Financial Assets at Amodized Cosf

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

. it is held within a business model whose objec;tive is to hold financial assets to
collect contrac'tual cash flows; and

o its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principaland intercst on the principalamount outstanding.
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After initial measurement, the financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized" cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment. Amortized cost is calculded by taking into aocount any discount or
premium on acquisition, and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. Gains and losses are recognized in proftt or loss when the financialassets are
reclassified to FVPL, impaired or derecognized, as well as through the amortization
process.

The Corporation'scash, short-term investments, and receivables are induded under
this category (Notes 7, 8 and 9).

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual anangement. lnterests, dividends, gains and losses
relating to a financial instrument or a oomponent that is a financial liabilily are
reported as expense or income. Distributions tq. holders of financial instruments
classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax
benefrts.

Cash

Cash includes cash on hend and in banks which are stated at face value.

Reoela0les

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an ac*ive market. Allorance for credit
loss accounts is provided based on an evaluation of expec{ed losses at inception of
a contrac't; recognition of a credit loss should no longer wail for there to be objective
evidence of impairment.

Financial Liabilities

The Corpmtion classifies itsfinancialliabilities, at initialrecognilion, in thefollowing
categories: financial liabilities at FVPL and otherfinancial liabilities. The Corporation
determines the classificatian of its financial liabilities at initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date. All
financial liabilities are reeognized initially at fair value, and, in case of loans and
bonowings, net of diredly attributable trcnsdion costs.

Other Financial Uabilities

Other financial liabilities pertain to issued ftnancial instruments that arc not
designated or classified as at FVPL and contain contracfual obligations to deliver
cash or another financial asset to the holder or to settle the obligation other than
through the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of its own equity shares.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequenfly measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated
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by taking into acount any discount or premium on the issue and any directly
attributable transac'tion costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss when the liabilities are
dereognized or impaired, as well as through amortization process.

This accounting policy applies primarily to financial liabilities (other than statutory
Iiabilities), long-term debt and other noncunent liabilities (Notes 16, 17 , 18 and 19).

4.4 lmpairment of Financial AssetF at Amortized Cost and FVOCI

The Corporation records an allowance for"expected credit loss' (ECL). ECL is based
on the differcnce between the contr*'tual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Corporation expec{s to reoeive. The
difference is then. discounted d an approximatiq.n to the assets original effective
interest rate.

Fortrade receivables, the Corporation has applied the simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on the lifetime ex@ed credit losses. The Corporation has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experien@,
adjusted for fonrar&looking facfors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For debt instruments measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECL is based on
the 12-month ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from
defauh events on a financial instrumerfi that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when.there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the llfetime ECL. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Corporation @mpares the risk of a default occuning on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occuning
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognilion.

4.5 Derecoonition of FinancialAssets and Liabilities

FinancialAssefs. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

the Corporation retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset,
but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a'pass-through' anangement; or

the Corporation has transfened its right to receive cash flows from the financial
asset and either (a) has transfened substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) has neither transfened nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transfened control of the asset.

a

o

o
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\A/hen the Corpordion has transfened its right to receive cash flows from a financial
asset or has entered into a pas+thrcugh anangement, and h'as neilher transfened
nor retained substantially all the risks and rcwards of ownership of the financial asset
nor transfened control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the
extent of the Corporation's continuing invdvement in the financial asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guanantee over the transfened financial asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Corpoetion could be required to
repay.

Financial Liabllities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under
the liability is discharged, cancelled or has exphed. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecqgnition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is different by at least 107o from the discounted present value
of remaining cash florvs of the originalliability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected
cash f,ows, discounted using the interest rate at $fiich the Corporation could raise
debt with similar terms and conditions in the market. The difference between the
carrying value of the original liability and fair value of the new liability is recognized
in the statements of omprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10 per cent threshold, the
original debt is not extinguished but merely modified. ln such Gase, the carrying
amount is adjusted by the costs orfees pald or received in the restruc,turing.

4.6 Offsettino of Financia!Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offiset and the net amount reported in the
statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a cunently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and therc is intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the
case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are
presented gross in the statements of financialposition.

4.7 classification of Financial lnstrument betrfleen Liability and Equitv

A financial instrument is classified as tiability if it provides for a contractual obligation
to:

o Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
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o Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
condilions that are potentially unfavorable to the Corporation; or

o Satisf/ the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of own equily shares.

lf the Corporation does not have an uncondilional right to avoid delivering cash or
another financial asset to settle its contradual obligation, the obligation meets the
definition of a financial liability.

4.8 lnventories

lnventories consist principalty of oonstrudion materials, spare parts, and supplies
which are stated at cost, generally determined by the average cost me{hod for a
significant portion of domestic inventories and by the ftrst-in, first-out method for
other inventories. Allowance for inventory write-down is provided for all non-
moving/obolete items.

4.9 Prepavments

Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recoded as assets before these
are utilized. These arc omprised of insurance pemiums, other prepaid items, and
creditable withholding taxes. Prepayments that are expec{ed to be realized for no
more than 12 months after the reporting date are dassified as cunent assets;
otherwise, these are dassified as other non-curent assets.

4.10 lnvestments

The Corporation acounts for its investments in wholly-owned/controlled
subsidiaries at cost while other investments dassified as ftnancial assets arc
measured at fair value. Allowance for impairment loss is provided for investment in
subsidiaries while market adjustment is accounted forfinancialassets measured at
fair value and reoognized as other comprchensive income or loss.

The Corporation believes that the effeds of not consolidating the subsidiaries are
not material to the financial statements because these subsidiaries are no longer
operating, resulting in accumulated deficit. ln 2015, the Corporatbn has iniliated the
prooess of closing its subidiaries that are no longer operating and those that are
losing. On Ocfober 1, 2015, as part of the reorganizdion and streamlining of
Corporation operations, PNCC assumed the opentions of DCBGSI which now
operates as a sepaate division of the Corporation.

ln a regular board meeting held on November 14,2011, the PNCC Board resolved
to comply with the ruling of the Suprcme Gourt to transfer and turn over to the
National Govemment (NG) the shares of stock in tollway Joint Venture Companies
(JVCs) which PNCC is holding in trustforthe NG.
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4.1 1 Investment Property

lnvestment property is compdsed of land or building or both held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. lnvestment property is recognized as an asset when
and only when il is probable that future economic benefits associated wtth the
property flows to the entity and the cost of the prcperty can be measured reliably.
lnvestment prcperty is initially measured at cost. Subsequent to inilial recognitiori,
the account is stated at fairvalue, which has been determined based on the average
valuations performed by two independent firms of appraisers every two years. The
changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

lnvestment prcperty is derecognized either when it has been disposed of or when it
is permanently withdrarrn frcm use and no future economic benefit is expec{ed from
its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement and/ordisposalof investment property
is recognized in prulit or loss in the period of retiqment and/or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change
in use, evidenced by ending of orner-occnpation or @mmencement of an operating
lease to another party. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only
when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commenement of the owner-
occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories,
the cost of propedy for subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of
change in use. lf the property occupied by the Corporation as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Corporation accounts for such
property in aeodance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to
the date of change in use.

4.12 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment in value. Property and equipment are subsequently canied
at revalued amounts.

The increase in the property and equipments carrying amount as a result of
revaluation is credited to equlty under the heading of "Revaluation lncrement in
Propertf. The revalued asset is being depreciated and, as such, part of the
revaluation increment is being realized as the asset is used. Piecemea! realization
of the revaluation inqement is effecled on a yearly basis. Realization of the
revaluation increment is credited to "Retained Eamings" account.

A revaluation increment of P4.418 million was realized in 2019 while, P5.212 million
was rcalized in 20'18.

Depreciation @mmences once the property and equipment are available for their
intended use and is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated usefut lives:
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Asset Type
Estimated Useful
Lives fin yearc)

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Construction equipment
Transportation equipment
Ofiice equipment, fumiture and fixtures
Others

10
10 to 33
2to10
3to5

5
2to7

Fully deprcciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation is chaqed against operations.

When the assets are retired or othenrise disposed of, the mt and related
accumulated depreciation and impairment in value are removed from the accounts
and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal prooeeds and the barrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in profit or loss.

4.1 3 lmpairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of investment property, property and equipment, and other
non-financial assets with finite useful lives and idle assets are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. lf any suc[r indication exists, and if the carrying
amount exceeds the estimated rccoveraHe amount, the assets or cash-generating
units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recovenable amount of the
asset is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value
less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's lengrth
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less costs of disposal. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash florc expec{ed to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
presentvalue using a pre.taxdiscount ptethat reflects cunent marketassessments
of the time value of money and the risks speciftc to the asset. For an asset that does
not generate largely irfdependent cash inflours, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs. lmpairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with
the funstion of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whetherthere is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. lf such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is rcversed only if there has been a change
in the eslimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. lf that is the ctlse, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Suchrevercal is recognized in profrt or loss. After such a revercal, the depreciation
and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
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carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
usefullife.

4.14 Fair Value Measurement

The Corpomtion measures a number of financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction betryeen market pailicipants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the prcsumption that the transadion
to sellthe asset ortransferthe liability takes place either:

o ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
\

o ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be aocessible to the
Corporation.

The fair value of an asset or a liabilily is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants ac't in their economic best intercst.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generde economic beneftts by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market pailicipant that rrould use the asset
in its highest and best use.
The Corporation uses valuation techniquesthat are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobseruable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is mesured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follovvs,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in aciive markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

o Level2: inputs otherthan quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, eilher dirccfly or indiredly; and

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

For assets and liabilities that are rccognized in the financiat statements on a
recuning basis, the CorporEtion determines whether transfers have occuned
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betvveen levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization at the end of each
reporting period.

Forthe purpose of fairvalue disclosures, the Corporation has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, charderistics and risks of the asset
or liability.

4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized only when: (a) the Corpomtion has a present obligation
(legal or construciive) as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely
than not) that an outfrorr of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obtigation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is
expeded to be reimbursed by another party, the r.eimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset only when it is vifiually certain thatreimbursement will be received.
The amount recognized for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the
provision.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expded future cash florrs d a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passee of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at each financial reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
cunent best estimate.

4.16 Equitv

Share Capital and Share Prwnium

The Corporation rccords share capitalat parvalue and share premium in excess of
the total contributions received over the aggregate par values of the equrty share.
lncremental costs incuned.dircctly attributable to the issuance of new shares are
recqnized as a dedudion frcm equily, net of any tax efrec'ts.

Deficit

Deficit pertains to accumulated losses of the Corporation

Treaanry Shares

Treasury shares ane qrrrn equrty instruments $'hich are reacquired, are canied at
cost and deduc'ted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized on the purchase, sale,
reissuance or cancellation of the Corporation's ourn equily instruments. \Mren the
shares are retired, the capitral stock account is reduced by ils par value and the
excess..of cost over parvalue upon retirement is debited to additional paid-in capital
to the e.xtent of the specific or average additional paid-in capital when the shares
were issued and to retained eamings forthe remaining balance.
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4.1 7 Revenue Recoonition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is prcbable that the economic benefrts
associated with the transaction will flow to the Corpordion and the amount of
revenue can be reliably measurcd. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contlaclually defined terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Corporation assesses its revenue
arangements against specific crtteria in oderto determine if it is acting as principal
or agent.

The following speciFrc recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

Servrbe lname

Service income is recognized on the basis of penbntage of completion method.

Lease lname

Lease income from operating leases, wherein substantially allthe risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the Corporation as a lessor, is recognized on a straight-
line basis overthe term of the relevant lease. The lease income is derived from the
Corporation's properties not used in business and being leased out to third parties
for a certain period, renewable under sudr terms and conditions as may be agreed
upon by both parties.

Revenue and DiidendShare from JointVenturc Cwnpanhs (JVCs)

Pursuant to the Supreme Court En Banc Decision, as discussed in Note 1, the
Corporation no longer records the tolhvays income from the North and South Luzon
Tollways (NLT and SLT).

ln accordance with the interim rules and guidelines issued by the Toll Regulatory
Board ORB) for the determination of the amounts due to the Corporation for its
administrative expenses, the Corporation recognized 10 per cent of ils share from
the gross toll revenue of the WCs, pending issuance of the lmplementing Rules
and Guidelines.

Dividend income is recognized when the Corporation's right to receive the payment
is established.

Other lnwne

CIher income is recognized when eamed.

4.18 Costs and Expenses

Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the reporting period
in the f-orm of outflorrs or decrease of assets or incunence of liabilities that result in
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decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to equlty participants.
Expenses-are recognized when incuned.

4.19 Bonowinq Costs

Bonowing costs arc expensed as incuned. These costs represent the two per cent
penalty charges impced by TRB on unpaid concession fees.

4.20 Leases

The determination of whether an anangement is, or contiains, a lease is based on
the substance of the anangement and requircs an assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after
the inception of the lease only if one of the followrqrg applies:

(a) there is a change in contractualterms, otherthan a renewalorextension of the
anangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or an extension is granted, unless the term of the
reneural or extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whetherfulfillment is dependent on a
specific asset; or

(d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for
scenarios (a), (c) or (d), and at the date of rcnewal or extension period for scenario
(b) above.

Openting Lease

The Corponllon as a Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Corporation
substantially all the risks and rewads of oumership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in profrit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs such as
maintenance and insurance arc o<pensed as incuned.

The Coryontion as a Lessor. Leases where the Corporation does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets are classified as
operating leases. Rent income ftom openating leases is recognized as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. lnitial direct costs incuned in negotiating an
operating lease are added to the carryrng amount of the leased asset and rmgnized
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rent income. Contingent
rents are reognized as income in the pefiod in which they are eamed.

34



4.21 lncome Taxes

Cunent falr. Cunent income tax assets or liabilities comprise of those claims from,
or obligations to, fiscal authorities relating to the cunent or prior reporting period that
are uncollec{ed or unpaid at reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal pedods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.

Defened la,v. Defened tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used fortaxation purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. where the defened tax liability arises from the initial recqnition of goodwillor of
an asset or liability in a transac*ion that is not a.business combination and, at the
time of the transac'tion, aiffects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profrt or
loss;and

o with respect to taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
shares of stock of subsidiaries and associate, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Defened tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differenoes,
canyfonrard benefits of unused tax qedits - Minimum Coryorate I nome Tax (MCIT)
and unused tax losses - Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO), to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit wil! be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the canyfonrard benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be
utilized, except:

o where the defened tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognilion of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affec-ts neither the
accounting profit nortaxable profit or loss; and

o with respect to dedudible temporary differences associated with investments in
shares of stock of subsidiaries and agsociate, defened tax assets arc recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable pnrfit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of defened tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer prcbable that sufficient taxable profit will be
avaihbb to allow all or part of the defened tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
defened tax assets ate reassessed at eadl reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable thd future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on trax
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rates and tax laws that have been enac{ed or substantively enasted at the reporting
date.

ln determining the amount of cunent and defened tax, the Corporation takes into
account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and
interest may be due. The Corporation believes that its accruals fortax liabilities are
adequate for all open tax yeats based on its assessment of many factors, including
interpretation of tax larrs and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates
and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New
information may become available that Gauses the Corporation to change its
judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax
liabilities will impact tai expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Cunent tax and defened tax are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognized diredly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Defened tax assets and defened tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
existsto set offcunenttax assets against cunenttax liabilities and the defened taxes
relate to the same taxable entily and the same taxation authority.

4.22 Value-Added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are reoognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

o where the tax incuned on a purcfiase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which ese the tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

. receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recovenable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of 'Prepayments" or ?ccounts Payable and Accrued Expenses'
acounts in the statements of financial position.

4.23 Creditable Wthholdinq Taxes

Creditable withholding taxes (CWT), included under'Other Assets" account in the
statements of financial position, represent the amounts withheld by customerc from
income payments to the Corporation less allowance for probable losses. CWT are
deductible from income tax payable.

4.24 Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and opeeting decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subjed to common control and significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals or corprate entities. Transdions between related parties are on an
arm's length basis in a manner similar to transac{ions with non-related parties.
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4.25 Basic and Diluted Eaminqs Per Common Share (EPS)

Basic EPSis computed by dividing the net income forthe period attributable to equity
holders of the Corporation, net of dividends on prefened shares, by the weighted
average number of issued and outstanding @mmon shares during the period, with
retroac[ive adiustment for any stock dividends dedared.

For the purpose of computing diluted EPS, the net income for the period attributable
to equrty holders of the Corporation and theweighted-avemge numberof issued and
outstanding common shares during the period are adjusted for the effed of all
potential dilutive debt or equity instruments.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Corporation has no dilutive equity
instruments.

4.26 Continoencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are
disdosed unless the possibility of an outflow of rcsources embodying economic
benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

4.27 Events Afierthe Financial Reportino Date

Post year-end events up to the date when the financial statements were authorized
for issue by the Board of Directors that provide additional information about the
Corporation's position atthe ftnancial repoding dde (adjusting events) are reflec{ed
in the financial statements. Any post year-end events that are non-adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

5. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Adoption of New and Revised PFRSs

The accounting plicies adopted are onsistent wilh those of the previous financial year
except for the adoption of the fotlowing amendments that are relevant to the Corporation
effective beginning January 1, 2019:

PFRS 16, Leases - This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its related
interpre{ations. The most significant change introduced by the new standard is that
almost all leases will be brought onto lessees' statement of financial position under
a single model (except leases of less than 12 months and leases of low-value
assets), eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor
accounting, hovvever, remains laryely undranged and the distinc;tion between
operating and finane lease is retained.

a

Philippine lnterprctation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty Over lname Tax Treafrnenfs - The
interpretation provides guidance on hor to reflec{ the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes under PAS 12, lname lalres, in particular (i) whether
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o

o

unoertain tax treatments should be considered separately, (ii) assumptions for
taxation aUthorities' examinations, (iii) determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused taxcredits and tax rates, and (iv) effect of changes
in facts and circumstances.

Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial lnstruments - Prepayment Feafurcs with
Negative Compnsation - The amendments allow entities to measure particular
prepayable financial assets wtth negative compensation at amortized cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income (instead of at fair value through profit or
loss) if a spcified condilion is met. lt also darifies the requirements in PFRS 9,
Financiat lnstrumentsfor adjusting the amortized cost of a financial liability when a
modffication or exchange does not result in its derecognition (as opposed to
adjusting the effecfive interest rate).

Amendments to PAS 28, lnvesfrnents in Assoaatqs and Joint Venturcs - Long-term
lnfercsfs rh Assocrafes and Joint Ventures- The amendments clanfy that long-term
interests in an associate or joint venturc thd, in substance, fom part of the entitt's
net investment butto which the equity method is not applied, are a@ounted for using
PFRS 9, Financial lnstrunents.

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee BenefiE - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Seffiement- The amendments specify hor companies remeasure a defined beneftt
plan when a change - an amendment, curtailment or settlement - to a plan takes
place during a reporting period. lt requires entilies to use the updated assumptions
from this remeasurement to determine cunent service cost and net interest cost for
the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan.

Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations and PFRS 11 , Joint Amngements
- Previously Held lnterest in a Joint Oprertion - The amendments are part of the
Annual lmprovements to PFRS 2015-2017 Gycle. The amendment to PFRS 3,
Business Combinations darifies that when an entity obtains control of a business
that is a joint operation, the acquirer applies the requirements for a business
cpmbination achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held interests in
the joint operation at its acquisition-date fair value. The amendment to PFRS 11,
Joint Amngemenb darifies that when an entity obtains joint control of a business
that is a joint operdion, the previously held interests in that business are not
remeasured.

Amendments to PAS 12,lnome lares - lncome Tatc Consquenes of Payments
on Financial lnstrumenfs Classrli'ed as Equity - The amendments are part of the
Annual lmprcvements to PFRS 2A15-2017 Cyde and darify that income tax
consequenes of dividends are linked more direc'tly to past transac'tions or events
that generated distributable prcfitsthan to distribution to owners and thus, should be
recognized in profrt or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events.

Amendments to PAS 23, Bonowing Cosfs - Bonowing Cosfs Eligible for
Capitalization - The amendments are Frt of the Annual lmprovements to PFRS
2015-2017 and darify that in calculding the capitalization rate on general
bonowings, if any specific bonowing remains outstanding afterthe related qualifying
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asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that bonowing becomes part of the funds
that an enff bonows generally.

Under prevailing circumstances, the ado$ion of the forcgoing new and revised PFRSs
is not expected to have any material effect on the Corporation's financial statements.
Additionaldisclosures will be included in the financial Etatements, as applicable.

New and Revised PFRSs Not Yet Adopted

Relevant new and rcvised PFRSs, which are not yet effective for the year ended
December 31,2019 and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements,
are summarized Elottt.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2020 -
o Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinationi, Definition of a Business - The

amendments are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual repoiling petiod beginning on or afier
January 'l , 2O2O and to asset acquisilions that occur on or after the beginning of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment defines business as an
integrated set of ac{ivities and assets that is capable of being conduded and
managed for the purpose of providing goods or services to customers, generating
investment income (such as dividends or interest) or generating other income from
ordinary acfivities. A business consists of inputs and processes applied to those
inputs that have the ability to contribute to the creation of outputs.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Sfafemenfs, and PAS 8,
Accounting Policies, Changes in Awunting Estimates and Enors, Definition of
Material - The new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expeded to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.

a

a

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2021

PFRS 17, lnsurane Contrerc{s - This standard will replace PFRS 4, lnsurance
Cont,,a,c6.. lt requires insurance liabilities to be measured at cunent fulfillment value
and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach to achieve
consistent, principle-based accounting for all insurance contrac'ts. lt also requires
similar principles to be applied to reinsurance contrac{s held and investment
contrac{s with discretionary participation features issued.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2022:

Amendments to PAS 1, Classr/ication of Uabilities as Cunent or Non-Cunenf- The
amendments affec't only the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial
position not the amount or timing of rccognition of any asset, liability income or
expenses, orthe information that entities disdose aboutthose items. Clarifythatthe
classification of liabilities as curent or non-cunent (i) should be based on rights that
are in existence at the end of the rcporting period and align the wording in all affected
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paragraphs to refer to the "righf to defer settlement by at least twelve months and
make expl[cit that only rights in place "at the end of the reporting period' should affect
the classification of liabillg, (ii) is unafiected by expectations about whether an entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, and (iii) settlement refers to the
transfertothe counterparty of cash, equity instruments, and otherassets orservices.

Defened effec'tivity -
Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Sfafernenfs and PAS 28,
tnvestments rh Assocrafes and Joint Venturcs - Sale or Confiibution of Assefs
Between an lnvestor and ifs Assooate or Joint Venfure - The amendments address
a current conflict between the two standads and clarify that a gain or loss should be
recognized fully when the trransaction involves a business, and partially if it involves
assets that do not constitute a business. The effec-tive date of the amendments,
initially set for annual periods beginning on or aftgr January 1,2016, was defened
indefinitely in December 2015 but earlier application is still permitted.

a

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNNNG JUDGilIENTS AND ESTITIATES

The preparertion of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with PFRSs
requires Management to make estimates that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Future events may occur which will cause the
assumptions used in aniving at the estimde to change. The estimates and
assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
Management's evaluation of relevant facils and circumstan@s as of the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could diffier from such estimates.

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
fac'tors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the period in which the judgments and
estimates are revised and in any future period afrected.

Judoments

ln the process of applying the Corporation's accounting policies, Management has made
the following judgments, apart from those invoMng estimations, which have an effect on
the amounts recognized in the financialstatements:

Operating Lease Commitmenfs - Ihe Coryontion as a Lessonlessee. The Corporation
has entered into various lease agreements either as a lessor or a lessee. The
Corporation has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the property leased out on operding leases while the significant risks and
rewards for property leased from thid parties are retained by the lessors.

Lease income recognized in proftt or loss amounted to P29.097 million and P72.798
million in 2019 and 2018, respectively (Note 24.2).

Rent expense recognized in profrt or loss amounted to P78,261 and P91,304 in 2019
and 201 8, respectively.
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Contingencies. The Corporation is cunently involved in various pending claims and
lawsuitswbich could bedecided in favorof oragainstthe Corpordion. The Lorporation,s
estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these pinding claims and lawsuits
has been developed in consultation with in-house as welt a1 tfre Office of the
Govemment Corporerte Counsel (OGCC) handling the prosecution and defense of these
matterc and is based on an analysis of potential results. The Corporation cunenfly does
not believe that these pending claims and tawsuits will have a material adverse effec.t
on its financial position and financial performance. lt is pssible, however, that future
financial performance could be materially affected bythe changes in the estimates or in
the effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceeOings. No accruats were made in
relation to these prooeedings (Note 33).

Estimates

The key assumptions @nceming the futurc and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporting dates that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the i'ext financial year are
discussed as follows:

Estimating allowanefurimpairmenf losses on loans and rcceivabtes

The Corporution maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a tevet considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectibb reieivables. The level of this allorance is
evaluated by Management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the
accounts. These fadorc include, but are not limited to, the customeds and l-essee,s
payment behavior and known maket factors. The Coryoration reviews the age and
status of reoeivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowances on
a continuous basis. The Corporation provides full allorreneior receivables that it deems
uncollectible.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the
Corporation made different judgments or uiilized different 

-esiimate". 
An increase in the

allowance for impairment losses on reoeivables would increase recorded operating
expenses and decrease cunent assets.

The Corporation had- no recognized revercal of attowance for impairment losses on loans
and receivables for 2019 while, p300,ooo was reoognized in zdta 6vote 26).

7. CASH

This account consists of:

20{9 2018
Cash in bank - local curency lil,il7,373 204,709,3g5

with ofiicer 450 000
134,697,373 205,159 ,385

Cash in bahk - local cunency eams interest at the prcvailing bank deposit rates.
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Resfncfedcash

The Corporation has P1OO.327 million restrided cash held in custody by the
Corporation's banks, used as collateral for the issuanoe of the appeal bond re: Emesto
N. Valentin, et al. vs. PNCC case. On Novembr 14,2016, the Supreme Court rendered

in PNCC's favor, denying wilh finalily the North Luzon Tollways (NLT) Employees Motion
for Reconsideration. \lVrth suclr denial, the dismissal of NLT Employees' complaint for
various money claims 4ainst PNCC is now final and exeottory, hence, the rcstric'ted

cash was reverted from other assets to the cash account in 2017. On February 7,2018,
the Corporation filed a Motion to Release Bond and dmlared the case closed and
terminated wilh the Labor Arbiter. On August 22,2A19, the Labor Arbiter issued an Order
granting the release of the remaining collateral. Hourever, the bank is requiring additional

documents, !\,hicfi PNCC is ornently nvorking at, for lifting the 'hold" resfriction.

8. SHORT.TERiI INVESTUENTS

This account consists of money placements in the Land Bank of the Philippines and the
Development Bank of the Philippines in the amount of P1.186 billion and P730.179 million
in 2019 and 2018, res@ively, with varying periods of 91 days or more depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Corponation and earn interest atthe prevailing short-
term investment mtes ranging from 3.00 per cent lo 4.25 per cent.

lnterest earned on these invstments amounted 1oP22.552 million and P10.187 million in
2019 and 2018, respectively (Note 24.51.

9. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of the following:

20 2018
(As restated)

Accounts receivable
I nter-agency receivables
lnterest receivable
Contributions and premiums receivable
Other receivables

30{,34{,361
152,209,174

9,957,539
24,O37

97.235.652

383,127,073
152,401,346

3,588,535
5,255

105.197.377

Allowance for impairment losses
560,822,363

1177.621.6141
644,319,586

('177,621,614\

383,200,749 466,697,972

An allowance for impairment losses is provided for Aocounts rceivable and lnterest
receivable amounting lo P177.458 million and P163,499, respectively.
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Accounts receivable mainly consists of the following

Academy (PMMA) totaling P78..fiA million, wherein a resolution in favor of the
Corporation was rendered by the Department of Justice on August 2, 2446,
ordering PMMA to pay the principal amount plus six per cent interest per annum
from the date of first demand on June 24,2Oo4. The OGCC was requested tofile
a Petition for money claims with the Commission on Audit (COA) in hhalf of the
Corporation. On November 7,2018, the Petition was filed with COA. The COA
has already direciled the PMMA to file its Ansrerto PNCC's Petition. PMAA filed
its Answer dated February 4,2019. Considering that said Answer was filed late,
OGCC filed a Motion to Strike OutAnsuer and prayed thatthe case be considered
submitted for decision. Awaiting the decision of COA.

Corponation with an aggregate amount of P2O.e81 million for manpowerservices
provided in the toll operations.

Corporation amounting to P10.398 million for the repairs and maintenance
services provided in the rehabilitation of its plant located in lsabel, Leyte.

in the principa! amount ot P42.235 million (net of P14.181 million collection in
August z0o4.), wherein a covering decision from the ffice of the President of the
Republic of the Philippines was rendercd in favor of the Corporation against
MIAA, ordering the latterto pay the Corporation the principalamount of Pffi.724
million and interest thereon at the rate of six per cent per annum from the date of
firct demand on January 31, 1989 untilthe same is fully paid.

On March 2,2012, PNCCfiled a petitionformoneydaim against MIAAwith COA.
On June 14,2016, the COA Commission Proper under CP Decision No. 2016-
105 grcnted PNCC's claim against MIAA and dircded MIAA to pay PNCC the
balance of the principal obligation plus six percent interest per annum or in the
total amount of P114.240 million less P14.181 million representing the initial
payment made by MIAA on August 2,20o4..

On July 26, 2016, MIAA filed a Motion for Reoonsiderdion (MR) with COA seeking
guidance on how it will implement the foregoing decision. ln the said MR, MIAA
stated that in failing to adduce the existence of vital documents, it is in legal limbo
to afrirmatively aci on what is being called uponitto prform.

The COA, in its Resolution dated April 26, 2017, denied the MR filed by MIAA.
Likewise, the COA, upon motion of PNCC, issued a Notice of Finality of Decision
dated November 9,2017.

On Oclober 3, 2018, PNCC sent formal and final demand to MIAA requiring
payment and reiteating the Notice of Finality of Decision issued by COA.
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On March 20, 2019, PNCC collec{ed from MIAA the subject receivables
amoun[ing to P1OO.O59 million, net of inilial payment, pursuant to the
aforementioned COA Decision.

9.1 Breakdown of the lnter-agency receivables account:

2019 2018

Due from National Govemment Agencies
Due from subsidiaries/associates/affiliates

{50,000,m0
2,283,174

150,000,000
2,401,U6

152,263,174 152,401,U6

Due from Ndional @vemment Agencies consist of remittances to Bureau of the
Treasury (BTr) of P150 million (P50 million in 2008 and P100 million in 2010)
originally intended for application against the unpaid concession fee, but was
confirmed by BTr to have been applied against'outstanding NG advances to the
Corporation. The account is initiatly recoded as Advances to BTr pending

clarification on the application of payment considering that no liability to BTr is
recorded in the books of the Corporation (Notes 17 and23).

Duefrom subsidiaries/assocides/affiliatestotaling P2.263 million and P2.401 million
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respec{ively, represent various
accommodations to the Corporatbn's su bsidiaries.

9.2 Breakdown of the Other reoeivables account:

20{9 2018

Due from officers and employees
CIher receivables

883,964
{{6.357.132

987,296
124.215.525

Allowance for impairment losse+ Other
receivables

{{7,24t,096

(20.005J44)

'125,202,821

e0.005,4441
97 1 197

Due from officers and employees mainly consist of cash advanoes of P395,516 and
receivables from Executive Assistants of the Direcfors due to excess professional
fees paid by PNCC amounting to P334,143.

The Govemanoe Commission for GOCCS, in its letter dated January 16, 2017,
informed the Corporation that pending the approva! of the Tqtal Compensation
Framework (TCF) and lndex of Occupational Services (lOS) of PNCC, the
Corporation shall maintain its cunent compensation framerrok. The Corpordion
cannot yet grant the Healthcare Plan benefit provided for under the Compensation
and Position Classification System (CPCS). ln orderforthe Gorporation to continue
granting the said benefit, it should fully comply first with the requirements for the
adoption of the CPCS.

HoweVer, on July 28,2017, President Rodrigo Roa Duterte issued Executive Order
(EO) No. 36 s. 2017 suspending the implemertation of the CPCS and the IOS
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Framework for the GOCG Sedor under EO No. 203 due to compelling reasons to
revisit and/or reevaluate the said CPCS.

As a result, starting March 2A18, the Corporution shall deduct the health care
insurance premium in 24 equal monthly installments, through a letter from the
employees and officers of the Corporation dated January 23,2018 requesting for
such payment terms.

Other receivables mainly consist of the following:

of P88.210 million and P79.029 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
rcspedively.

P7.292 million and P9.319 million as of'Deoember 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

(NLRC) cases filed by present and former employees of the Corporation totaling
P8.538 million which consist mctly of claims for non-payment of benefits, such
as mid-year bonus, exit bonus, and other benefits.

The receivables are not used as collaterals to secure obligations.

10. INVENTORIES

This account consists of the following

20{9 2018
Office supplies
Construction materials
Medical, dental, and laboratory
Fuel, oil, and lubricants
Other materials and suoolies

417,632
543,957
507,873
5:14,592

4.881.422

466,618
543,957
495,064
419,177

4.778.127

Allowance for impairment losses - Other mderials
and suoolies

6,885,476

(2.992.956t

6,702,943

(2.992.956)

3.892.520 3.709.987

!n 2-01-5, the Corporation failed in its attempt to bid out the remaining inventories due to
lack of bidders. However, in 2016, the Gorporation partially sold inventories amounting to
P212,2ffi. A 60 per cent allowance was provlded for inventories that are due for dispdsal
based on its appraised value.

Other materials and supplies account consist mostly of common supplies and hardware
materials.-
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II. OTHER CURRE]IIT ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

2019 2018
V\rilhholding tax at souroe
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid registration
Creditable input tax

22,943,3G0
2,291,722
1,4,,2,924

74,571

21,513,982
503,901
991,380
74,571

Other
23,11 740

{2. INVESTiIENTS

This account consists of the following:

I 2018
(As restated)

lnvestments in Sbck
Dasmarifi as lndustrial & Steelworks Corp.
Alabang-Sto Tomas Development, lnc.
Tierra Faclors Corporation
CDCP Farms Corporution
Manila Land Corporation
Managerial Resou rces Corporation
San Ramon Ranch
Traffic Control Products Corporation
San Roque Rancfr
Laguna Lake Development Authority (net of

subscriptions payable of P258,642)
PNCC Skyway Corporation
Land Management Corporation

96,4{3,530
6{,200,000
51,635,109
15,{20,200
10,000,000
1,525,922
1,1oor(xrc

700,000
550,000

{8t,{58
{25,050
{,l,000

96,413,530
61,200,000
51,635,109
15,124,200
10,000,000
1,525,922
1,100,000

700,000
550,000

181,158
125,050

11,000

Allowance for impairment losse's
238,56,1,969
({77,{80,8t{l

238,561,969
(177,180,8111

6{,38{,{58 61,391,159

Financial assets at fair value Orrcugh other
comprchensive income

Mimosa Golf and Country Club
Manila Elec{ric Company
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company
Puerto Azul Beach and Country Club
Architec'tural Centre. lnc.

3,190,000
176,970
350,799
100,000

3,500

3,180,000
476,970
350,799
100,000

3,500
4,111,269
({,923,500}

4,111,269
(1,699,500)Market adjustmenl
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2019 2018
(As restated)

Other lnveshents
Citra Central Epressway Gorporation
Citra lntercity Tollways, lnc.
CDCP Employees Savings & Loan Association

620,000,000
24{1,8{6,700

2,094,725
286.600

620,000,000
240,816,700

2,094,725
286.600Others

86:t.198,025 863.198.025
926.766.962 926.990.952

The GCG, in its memorandum for the President of the Republic of the Philippines dated

June 24, 2019, re@mmended the abolition of the five subsidiaries of the Corporation,
namely: Alabang-Sto. Tomas Development, lnc. (ASDI); DISC Contractors, Builderc and

General Services lnc. (DCBGSI); Trafric Control Produds Corporation (TCPC); CDCP-

Farms Corporation (CDCP-FC); and Tierra Facfors Coqporation (TFC).

Through a Memorandum from the Executive Secretary dated August 7,2014, the GCG
was informed that its recommendation to abolish the PNCC subsidiaries had been
approved by His Excellency, the President of the Republic of the Philippines, subjecf to
pertinent lavvs, rules, and rcgulations.

. On Ocdober 16,2012, ASDI's corporate life was shortened up to December 31 ,20'12
pursuant to Board Resolution No. BD-04-2AU. On August 7, 2014, this Board
resolution was revoked. lnvestment in ASD|was originally 255,000 @mmon shares
with a par value of Pl,000 per share representing equity ownership of the Corporation
at 51 per cent, with the remaining 49 per cent orrned by the National Development
Company (NDC). On December 9, 20',5, ASDI liquidated 127,500 common shares of
PNCC as part of its dissolution process paying PNCC P127.500 million. On December
15, 2016, the Corporation received P66.3 million as additional partial liquidation of its
investment in shars of ASDI. ASDI has a pending colledion balance of P4.200 million
from the Department of Public Works and Highways (DPWH).

. On September Xi,2013, the abolition/dissolution of TCPC was approved per Board
Resolution BD-006-2013. The conveyance of TCPC assets to PNCC has already
been completed. Part of these assets has alrcady been disposed through public
bidding. The remaining undisposed assets are now being dassified according to
commodity classification for appraisal and for purpose of higher retum upon sale.

o On September 30, 2015, DCBGSI urras closed purcuant to DCBGSI Shareholders'
Resolution dated August 7,2015. On October 1,2A15, PNCC absorbed DCBGSI
functions. On January 18, 2016, the Boad of Directors (BOD) of DCBGS! approved
the shortening of ils corpoete life to January 31 , 2016. On September 27 ,2019, the
Executive Secretary issued a Memorandum temporarily designating the five members
of the BOD of PNCC as memberc of DCBGSI Berd to perform activities necessaryto
carry out the winding down of operations, disposition of assets and settlement of
liabilities and closing of books of accounts of DCBGSI.

o On September 30, 2015, Special Stockhdders' Meetings of TFC and CDCP-FC were
held to dissolve these subsidiaries. Management is still arraiting the appointment of
Directors'for both companies in order to cal! for a Board Meeting to put into effect the
closure of the two companies. A letter dated March 10, 2016 has been sent to the
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GCG regarding this matter. On September 17,2019, Management sent another letter
to GCG, explaining the necessily to designate membens of the BOD d its three
subsidiaries, namely: ASDI, DCBGSI and CDCP-FC.

o Except for the Corporation's investment in ASDI, a 100 per oent impairment loss is
provided for investments in inac'tive and non-operating subsidiaries and affiiliates, as
well as investments in the remaining acfive wholly-owned subsidiary, due to their
incunence of losses resulting in accumulated deftcit.

o On the following dates, Citra Central Expressway Corporation (CCEC) issued ten (10)
per cent Tree-canf equity shares (P100 parvalue) as the Corporation's share in the
Joint Venture Company as follows: June 30, 2014 - 125,000 shares; September 15,

2AM - 275,000 shares; and December 1, 2A16 - 5,800,000 shares.

. On the following dates, Citra lnterclty Tollways, lnq. (ClTl) issued ten (10) per cent
'free-canf equity shares (P1OO par value) as thg Corpomtion's share in the joint
venturc company as folbws: March 9, 2016 - 400,000 shares and December 1, 2016
- 2,008,167 shares.

{3. INVESTUENT PROPERW

lnvestment property includes land and building which are held to eam rentrals under
operating leases and are held forcapilal appreciation. The carrying amounts recognized
in the Statements of Financial Position reflec't the aver4e fair values based on an
appraisal conducted by two independent appraisers every other year, the most recent is
2019. Details are as follows:

Buildings and
Lard lmptovements Total

At December 31, 2018
Cost as previously reported
Adjustment

70,772,301
0

0

5,321,OO7

70,772,301
5,321,007

Cost as restated 70,772,301 5,321,007 76,093,309

Accumulated Depreciation as
previously reported

Adjustment
0
0

0
(3,050,173)

0
(3,050,173)

Accum. Dep. as restated 0 (3,050,173) (3,050,173)

Net BookValue as restated 70,7'12,301 2,270,834 73,043,135
Appraisal
Accumulated

14,408,259,199 259,294,000 14,667,553,199
000

{4,479,031,500 261,5Of,834 14,74{r,596,334
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Buildings and
Land lmprcvements

At December 31, 20{9
Cost
Opening Net Book Value
Additions

70,772,301
0

0

2,270,834
0

(161,243)

Total

73,043,135
0

(161,243)Depreciation this year

Closing Net Book Value

FairValue Adiustment
Balance at beginning of year

Additions

70,772,301 2,109,591 72,881,892

Appraisal Adjustment

14,408,259,199
0

19,035,487,000

259,294,000
0

71,237,00O

14,667,553,199
0

19,106,724,000

Balance at end of year 33,443,745,r$ ' 330,53{,000 31,774,277,199

At llecember 3{,2019
Cost
Accum ulated Depreciation

70,772,301 5,321,007
(3,211,416)

76,093,308
(3,211,416)

70,772,301 2,109,591 72,881,892

Appraisal

Accum ulated Depreciation

33,443,746,199

0

330,531,000

0

33,774,277,199

0

33,443,745,r* 330,5i11,000 13,774,277,199

33,514,5{8,5U} 332,640,591 33.847,159,09{

13.1 FinancialCenterArea (FCA) in Pasav Citv

ln 1973, a contrac{ was entered into by and berfireen the Corporation and the
Republic of the Phitippines (RP), represented by the then Department of Public
Highways (now DPWH), forthe construdion of the Manil+Cavite Coastal Road and
the reclamation of some portions of the foreshore and offshore lands along Manila
Bay, otherwise knorn as the Manila-Cavite Coastal Road Prcjec't, at the
Copordion's expense. -

As compensation for the work accomplishments, the Corporation obtained the
129,U8 sq.m.-land, knorn as Lot 6, frcm the National Govemment for P64.600
million, covered by Certificate of Pledge No. 2 (P38.5 million) and Cefficate of
Pledge No. 3 (P26.100 million).

Administrative Order (AO) No. 397, which was signed and approved by then
President Fidel V. Ramos on May 31, 1998, mandated that Lot 6 be titled in the
name of PNCC.

Although the title to the property is still in the name of RP as of report date, the
Office of the Govemment Corporate Counsel (OGCC) issued an opinion on.April
21,2AO1that the Corporation can sell, dispose, or assign its real rights, interests,
and participation over the property, which real right or interest over Lot 6 is
evidenced by the aforesaid Certificates of Pledge.
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13.2

On August 2,2013,the OGCC issued anotheropinion thatthe Corporation may not
sell or transfer its ownerchip of the FCA to a private corpration but may only lease
it for a period not exceeding 25 years, renewable for not more than 25 years, and
not to exceed 1,000 heclarcs in area. The Corporation may only sell it to Filipino
citizens subjec't to the 12-hectare Constitutional limitation. Under these
circumstances, the Corporation can either: (1) secure a presidential proclamation
officially dedaring that the FCA is no longer needed for public use; or (2) dispose
it, consistent with the constitutional restriction, to a qualified Filipino citizen, but only
to the extent of 12 hedares.

lndependent firms of appraisers engaged by the Corporation to determine the fair
value of the propefty repofted a P6.630 billion appraised value in 2009, P7.462
billion in 2010, P7.4U billion in 2011,P9.720 billion in 2013, P9.987 billion in 2015,
P13.927 billion in2017 and P32.452 billion in 2Q19.

The subject property has been leased out and has been generating lease revenue
since 2005. Lease income eamed, net of VAT, amounted to P28.661 million and
P72.362 million in 2019 and 2018, res@ively (Note 24.2).
However, in a Regular Board meeting on April 17, 2018, the PNCC Board of
Directorc approved Board Resolution No. BD 069-2018 which resolved not to
extend the lease oontracls of various leases efredive May 31, 2018 in view of the
planned development of the subjec* property.

On October 10, 2019, the Corpordion entered into a long-term Lease Contradwith
the Pacific Concrete Prcduc'ts lnc. for the lease and development of the three-
hectare portion of the property. As to the remaining 9.9 hec'tars, the Terms of
Reference for the public bidding of its lease and development has already been
finalized bythe Managementand apprcved bythe Corporation's Board of Direc{ors.
The same was submitted to the ffice of the President of the Philippines for its final
review and approva!.

The folloring real estate proprties (held for cunently undetermined future use or
held for capital appreciation) also comprise the lnvestment Property account:

Location
Area

(in sq.m.) Cost
Appraisal
lncrease/
Decrease

FairValue

Dasmarifias, Cavite
Casinglot, Misamis

Oriental
Rizal, Tagaytay
Sta. Rita, Bulacan
Antipolo, Rizal
Porac, Pampanga
Bocaue, Bulacan

75,000
60,620

99,207
20,000
14,770

116,591
9,926

625,9fr)
1,O77,M

1,367,339
1,579,950
1,185,531

145,737
162,679

417,124,2N
242,232,516

93,906,161
138,145,050
66,0e1,469
49,407,93
62,372,322

417,750,W
203,310,000

95,273,500
139,725,000
67,250,000
49,553,000
62,535,000

000
,l

27 o27 27 31 27
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ln 2011, the Land Bank of the Philippines, engaged by the Corporation to condud
an inspgction and appraisal of its properties situated in different areas in the
Philippines, disclosed that the property located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with a total
area of 75,000 sq.m. is nottitled and registered underthe name of the Corporation.

The Dasmarifias property is located wtthin the First Cavite lndustrial Estate (FCIE),
a joint venture project of the National Development Corporation (NDC), Marubeni
Corporation, and Japan lntemational Development Organization (JAIDO). The
75,000-sq.m. lot was excluded from the Contrad of Sale executed between the
Corporation and NDC on April 7, 1983, which @vers the sale of the Corporation's
several parcels of property to NDC. On April 10, 1992, the Committee on
Privatization (COP) approved the sale of the property to NDC at a price not lower
than Pl50/sq.m. The Asset Privdization Trust (APT), however, suggested that the
price should instead be P180/sq.m. The sale was not consummated due to the
disagreement in the price to be used. Thereaflpr, the property was developed by
NDC, absent any contrac't of sale yet.

The Dasmarifias property is supported by Transfer Certificate of Title (TCT) No. T-
98739 which was canoelled after the sale in April 1983. The Corporation was not
able to acquire a new TCT under its name forthe remaining lots but is conducting
further negotiations with NDC for compensation on the property.

As discussed in Note 17, the Corporation, in its Motion for Reconsideration dated
March 13,2014, prayedthatthe Departnrentof Justice (DOJ) orderNDCto paythe
Corporation the value of the 75,000 sq.m. of Dasmarifias property which was
excluded in the Contract of Sale but developed and sold by NDC to locators of the
FCIE, plus legal interest thereon from the time d demand up to the actual date of
payment.

The DOJ issued an Order dated January 22, 2015 denying the Motion for
Reconsideration filed by the Corpoldion. On June 26, 2015, the Corporation
appealed the decision of the DOJ with the ffice of the President of the Republic of
the Philippines (OP).

The Corpomtion is awaiting the decision of the OP on the mdter.

13.3 The direc[ operating expenses incuned by the Corporation for 2019 from rental
incomegenerating and non-rentalincomegenerating investment propertyamounted
to P4.831 million and P1.126 million, respectively. These direct operating expenses
consist of realty property taxes, security seruices, salary of carctakers and business
permits.
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14. PROPERW AND EQUIPIIENT

This account includes the following:

Land & Land
lmorovements

Buildings &
lmDro\remenG

Construc{ion
Equipment

Transportatbn
Equipment Others Total

At December 31, 2018

10,115,936 36,800,884 20.,m,153 33,193,505 37,700,703 138,049,481

Net

Cost
Accrmulated

Appraisal

Value

At December 31, 2019

Cost
Opening Net BookValue
Additions
Disposals/VVrite off

1 1

7 7W 1

654,s17,569 72,277,023 7,8n jn 84,609 1,701,463 736,407,791
701

712,8ii64,,860
0
0

7977
0
0

796,413
8,398

0

73,019
0

(18,839)
0

595,863
707,82,
('t3,091)

13,975,991
716,20
(31,s30)

forthe Year
Net Book

Revaluatlon lncremetrt
Opening Net BookValue
AppnaisalAdJustment
DisposalslVt/rile off
Deprodation for the Year

63:)2/$5,979
831,338,41X)

0
0

I 74

644,594,269
860,238,890

0

11,348,104
28,900,460

0

1 55
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

31

0
0
01

1

10,115,936 36,800,884 20,2'16,851 29,549,937 38,395,434 135,109,042

3t0

At December3l, Ang
Cost

l,lst Bookvelue I

Net 74

Revaluationlncrcment 1,tfE5,855,999 1O1,177,4E3 7,n7,127 1,701,463 1,596,562,072
701

Net BookValue

14.1 Revaluation

The Corporation engaged the seMces of the following independent and recognized
appraisal companies for the appraasal of some of its designated properties,
struc'tures, buildings, fence, and silrcet lightings:

0
0

YEAR
REVALUATION INCREASE

(DECREASE)
(in {fiousand pesoe}

APPRAISAL CORPORANON

19.97
2003
20u
2006

69.71
1,620.00

0.05
(23s.s6)

Genenal Appraisal Co., lnc.
Various
Various
Various
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YEAR
REVALUATION INCREASE

(DECREASE)
(in thousand pesoel

APPRAISAL @RPORATION

2010
2011
2013

2015

2017

146.208
(16.523)

17.591

456.941

109.370

602.167

Various
Land Bank of the Philippines
Cuervo Appraisers, lnc. and CAL-FIL
Appraisal & Management, lnc.
CAL-FIL Appraisal &Management, lnc.,
Asset Consult, Top Consult &RoyalAsia
CAL-FIL Appraisal & Management, lnc.
and Top Consult
CAL-FIL Appraisal & Management, lnc.
and Asian AppraisalCo., lnc.

2019

14.2 Others

The Corporation also orns some 278,477 sq.m. of property, with a total value of
Pfi4.1n mitlion, located in different areas of the country which are not yet recorded
in the books, as the same are still registered in the name of previous ownerc. The
Corporation is woking on the transfer of title to its name.

{5. OTHER ]IIO]{CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

2019 2018
(As restated)

Guaranty deposits
Receivables from former employees and

net of allowance for impairment losses
Acounts receivable+trade
Other deposits
Other assets

71,072,0N 71,072,000
consultants,

50,924,889
50,879,182

1,2o3,ggg
2qr J27

50,901,589
50,879,182

1,181,088
444.713

174,327,787 174,478.572
Assets forwrite offi
Allowance for losses

9,615A22,219 9,615,422,219
(9.6{ (9.6 5.422.21911

0 0

Other assets
Allowance for impairment losses

653,874,239
1653.874.2391

654,174,239
Gil.174.2391

0 0

Defered charges 6,802,733 6,802,733
Allowance for losses 802,

0 0
572t7 787 174
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15.1 Guarantv deposits

This account pertrains to the guarantee/collateral for the lnvestors Assuranoe
Corporation (lAC) Bond No. G (16) 0015764 in favor of IAC amounting to P71.072
million. This is also in connection with the Emesto N. Valentin, et al. vs. PNCC case.
On November 14, 2}16,the Supreme Court rendered in PNCC'sfavor, denying with
finalitythe North Luzon Tollways (NLT) Employes' Motion for Reonsideration. With
such denial, the dismissal of NLT Employees'complaint for various money claims
against PNCC is nowfinaland executory. On February 7,2018,the Corporation filed
a Motion to Release Bond and declared the case closed and terminated with the
Labor Arbiter. On Augu s122, 2019, Labor Arbiter Abdon partially granted the release
of cash cpllateral excluding the amount atlegedly released by IAC in the total of
P37.107 million. OGCC appealed the Oder with the National Labor Relations
Commission (NLRC) on the ground that there is no sufficient proof that IAC released
the said amount to the complainants. The appeql however was dismissed. OGCC
filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the said dismissal. PNCC likewise filed an
Administrative Complaint against Labor Arbiter Abdon with NLRC. Awaiting the
decision of NLRC on the Motion for Reconsideration and the administrative case
filed against the Labor Arbiter AMon.

Considering that IAC is under conservatorchip, PNCC likewise filed an
administrative complaint against IAC with the lnsurcnce Commission (lC) for its
failure to release the bond despile the finality of the dismissal of the case, with a
request for lC to segregate from the funds of IAC the cash collateral of PNCC in the
amount otP71.072 million. PNCC likewise requested from lC to investigate, with the
help of the National Bureau of lnvestigation (NBl), the alleged release ot P37.107
million by IAG to the complainants. Awaiting action from lC on the above complaint
and requests.

15.2 Receivables from former emplovees and consultants

The amount of P50.925 million mainly consists of the following:

o P39.520 million represents cash advanoes for franchise extension granted to a
former officer of PNCC.which remained unliquidated and was refened by PNCC
to the Office of the Govemment Corporate Counsel (OGCC) for legal ac'tion. Due
to failure to liquidate despite written demands, on March 12, 2014, a joint-
complaint was filed by former Commission on Audil - PNCC Audit Team Leader
and Supervising Auditor against the said fomer officer before the Office of the
Ombudsman in compliancewith COA CircularNo. 2012404 dated November2S,
2012. The trial of the case was conducted in 2019 before the 3d Division of the
Sandiganbayan. Awaiting for the resolution of the case by the Sandiganbayan.

o Cash advances granted to the former offices and employees of the Gorporation
in the amount of P10.E49 million and former dircctors' car plan equity balance of
P0.532 million.
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15.3 Accounts reoeivables - trade

This account pertains to operating acoess fees due from oit companies totaling
P50.879 million, of which P46.728 million was refened to PNCC's LegalDepartment
for appropriate adion, P2.646 million is subjed of an ongoing reconciliation, and
PI.505 million is being paid on installment basis. One of the oilcompanies refened
to PNCC's Legal Department informed the Corporation that the funds for payment
of the royalty fees are in escrow because of the WIit of Gamishment issued in 2005
prohibiting it from making any payments to the Corporation. Payments will
accordingly be made once the gamishment is lifted.

15.4 Assets forwrtte off

This account consists of assets, the existence of which is doubtful and
collec{ibility/realizability is uncertain

fin thousand oesos)
Receivables and dvances
Property and equipment
Defened charges
lnventories
lnvestment in stocks
Pre-operating expenses
Accounts receivablelong term
lnvestment in joint ventures
Guarantee depcits
Other deposits

4,139,{36
2,972,888
1,755,663

611,U2
{79,798
137,323
12,000
4,563

812
,l,997

9,6'/5,4122

These accounts have been provi&d a 100 per cent allowance for impairment losses.
The Corporation, in its letter of June 3, 2014, requested authority from the
Commission on Audit to adjustrtvrite off the aforesaid long-outstanding accounts in
consonance with COA Circular No. 97-001 dated February 5, 1997.

On June 6, 2017, COA informed the Corporation that the aforementioned request
has been retumed pending the submission of additional documents to facilitate the
processing thereof. The Corporation will resubmitthe requestforauthorityfrom COA
to write offthe accounts as soon as addilionaldocumentation is completed.

15.5 Otherassets

These accounts, which have also been provided wilh 100 per cent allowance for
impairment losses, are as follows:

2019 2018
(As restated)

Acco_unts rcceivable-subsidiaries and affiliates
Other accounts receivable
Billed contraci receivables

20/.,974,U3
174,g,/0317
90,522,50{

204,974,U3
175,200,317
90,522,501
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20t9 2018

Advances to joint
Accounts receivablstrade 54,828,519 54,828,519
Claims receivable 24,496,96n 24,4ffi.,Oil
Advances to subcontrac'tors 17,169,{07 17,169,107
Defened charges 6,802,733 6,802,733
Contract retention rcceivable 2,380,025 2,380,025
Advances to suppliers 2,190,126 2,190,126
Advances to contld ownerc 636#31 636,431
Other assets.dormant account 636,088 636,088
Unbilled contraci receivable 2il,455 2U,456
Accounts receivable-ofiicerc & enr ployees 171.609 171.609

65i!.874.239 6iljt74.239
\

The Corporation will rcquest authority from COA to wrtte offi the accounts as soon
as documentation is completed.

16. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This account consists of the following:

20{9 2018
(As restated)

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other accounts payable

1,786,180
13,064,321

14,997

1,623,918
10,462,228
1,8(X,520

14865,488 13,890,666

16.1 Accounts oavable

Accounts payable are liabilities to suppliers of goods and services and to
govemment agencies as regards the mandatory deductions from the employees
compensation and traxes wtthheld on income payments to suppliers of goods and
services.

16.2 Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses account includes acrual of the mandatory benefits and leave
credits of the Corporation's ernployees, unpaid prorfessional fees and unpaid
acmunts to supplierc of goods and services that are normally settled within 12
months frcm the reporting period.
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{7. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILMES

This account consists of payables forthe fotlowing:

2019 2018

Due b National Govemment
Concession fees (TRB)
Joint venture companies' revenueldividends

6,302r,{49,269
1,329,0{7,649

97{,550,S7

6,044,437,900
1,329,017,449

971.550.967Toll revenue (SLEX operation under TOC)
8.603,008,8{6 8.345.006.516

Due to GOCC
Various advances 1 1.203.000.000

9,906,008,816 9,548,006,516

17.1 Concession fees

The conession fees of P6.302 billion (principal amount of P1.06 billion plus
penalty charges of P1.032 bitlion from 2016 to 2019, which is P258 million
annually, and P4.21 billion in 2015 and prior years) pertain to the Corpoetion's
payable to TRB pursuant to the Toll Operation Agreement (TOA) dated October
1977 . The Corporation is being charged of two per cent penalty charges per month
on unpaid concession fees which amount to over P250 million annually.

From May 2008 to March 2009, the Corporation made initial payments to the
Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) totaling P220 million, of which the latter confirmed
application of the P170 million against outstanding concession fees while the P50
million was unilaterally applied by BTr against an outstanding advances from the
National Govemment (NG).

On July 16, 2010, the Corporation remitted to the NG, through BTr, the amount of
P200 million to be applied to outstanding concession fees. However, BTr applied
only P100 million and the other P100 million against advances from NG.

These payments bdng the Corpordion's total remittances to P495 million from
2006 to rcport date.

17 .2 Joint Venture Companies' revenue/dividends

As discussed in Note 1, the expiration of the Corporation's franchise in 2007
resuhed in the NG's wning the tollfees and the net inome derived from the toll
assets and facilities and also the Corporation's percentage share in the toll fees
collected by the Joint Venture Companies (JVCs) cunently operating the tollways.

In line with the above and pending finalization of the lmplementing Rules and
Guidelines (lRG) relative to the determination of the net income remittable by the
Coporation to the NG, the Corporation initially recognized its obligation to the
Government in the amount of P1.329 billion (net of the direc't remittance of the
consigned monies of P337.94 million to the BTr on December 23,2011).
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The aforesaid amounts were computed at 90 per cent of the gross revenue share
and dividends received from May 2007 lo December 31, 201A. This is in
accoldance wilh the interim rules and guidelines issued by TRB in compliance with
the decision of the Supreme Court (SC) in the Fransso Case (Note 1).

The SC directed TRB, with the assistance of the Commission on Audit, to prepare
and finalize the IRG for the determination of the amounts that the Corporation is
entitled for its administrative expenses.

17.3 Toll revenue (SLEX ooeration under TOC)

Purcuant to the Supreme Court En Banc Decision discussed in Note 1, the
Corporation recognized in the books the unremitted share in the toll revenue for
the operation of the South Luzon Expressray (SLEX) under the Toll Operation
Certificate from May 20O7 lo Apri! 2010 in the Amount of P1.537 billion, based on
TRB's computation, which accordingly was anived at by deducting from gross toll
revenue the allowable 40 per cent opertions and maintenance (O&M) expenses
or ac'tual O&M expenses, whichever is lower.

!n December 2016, the Corporation remitted to the NG, through BTr, the amount
of P566.3 million as partial payment for outstanding share in the toll revenue.

17.4 Various advanes from NDC

This account covers various advances from the National Development Company
(NDC) totaling P214 million between 1990 to1999 for foreign and peso accounts
for which PNCC issued promissory notes, and interest and penalties thereon of
P989 million as of Decemhr 31, 2009. The issue covering the various advances
from NDC is under arbitration before the OGCC Arbitral Tribunal:

NDC, Petitioner vs. PNCC, Respondent (OGCC ARB Case No. 001-2000)
Based on the submifted pleadings and suppoiling documents, the following
issues appearto be dear:

Promissory Notes plus aerued interest and penatties as provided in the
said Notes, and the Documentary Stamp Tax necessary for the execution
thereof;

respondent's mortgage loan (including interest thereon) thd petitioner paid
in orderto rclease the titles of the properties that petitioner bought from the
respondent;and

which petitioner developed with its Joint Venture partner despite the fac{
that said lot was specifically exduded in the Contract of Sale.
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The Department of Justice (DOJ), in ils February 18, 2014 Consolidated Decision,
grantqd NDC's Petition against the Corporation, the dispositive portion of which
follows:

"However, the Pebtion ftled by NDC again* PNCC is GRANTED. As pnyd
for, rcspondent PNCC is ordercd: (1) to pay p{ttioner NDC the principal
amount of the Promisnry Nofes, plus accnted inferesfs and pnalties as
prcvidedforinthe saidNofes; and (2) to reimburw pe{ftionerthe amountof
moftg age loan including inteiest thereort."

On March 12,2014, NDC wrote the Corporation daiming payment of the various
advanceslloans extended to the latter pursuant to the aforesaid Consolidated
Decision of the DOJ.

The Corporation, in its letter of March 19,2014, informed NDC that it cannot yet
settle the account as the decision of the DOJis not ftnal and executory and that it
had filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) dated March 13,2014, duly received
atthe DOJ on March 14,2014.

ln the said MR, the Gorporation prayed that the DOJ consider the onsolidation as
not poper and decide on OGCC ARB Case No. 001-2000 separately:

unpaid balance on the Dasmarifias property, plus legal interest thereon from the
time of demand up to the time of payment; and

Dasmarifias property which was excluded in the Contract of Sale but developed
and sold by Petilioner to locatons of the First Cavite lndustrial Estate, plus legal
interest thereon from the time of demand up to the actual date of payment.

On January 22,2015,1he DOJ denied the Corpoetion's Motion for Reconsideration
(MR). Thereafter, the Corporation filed a Supplement to the MR on May 28,2015
which was also denied by DoJ in its oder dated July 13, 2015. On June 26,201s,
the Corporation filed a Notie of Appeal with the Office of the President of the
Republic of the Philippines (OP) and filed the conesponding Appeal Memorandum
on July 27,2015.

The Corpoetion is araiting the resolution of the OP on the appeal.
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{8. INTER.AGENCY PAYABLES

This account cohsists of the following

2019 2018
(As restated)

lncome tax payable

Due to SSS
Due to Pag{BIG
Due to BIR
Due to PhilHealth
Due to Subsidiary (CES[A)

812,027
608,209
{89,876
{59,326
,l15,864

0

7,137,870
M2,606
169,905

11,265,680
99,136

232
1,885,302 19,1',15,429

This account indudes income tax payable, tiaxes withheld from officers and employees,
premium payments and other payabtes for remittance to SSS, P4-lBlG and PhilHealth.

,l9. TRUST LIABLINES

This account consists of the following

2A{9 2018
Cunent
Trust liabilities 25,296,846 39,363,786

Non-Cunent
Trust liabilities
Advances from contrac't ownerc

103,025,071
0

2,768,5E3
1 021 046

103,025,071 3,789,629

Cunent account referc to customers' deposits pertaining to three months security deposit
paid by tenants from the leaseil FCA property and 10 per cent bid deposil posted by
winning bidders with regard to the Corponation's disposal of assets and scrap mderials.

Non-cunent account mainly consists of security deposits on long-term leases of FCA and
Porac, Pampanga prcperties.

20. DEFERRED CREDITS'UNEARNED INCOUE

Defened credit pertains to the recognized value added tax on the sale of seruices of the
Corporation. lt consists of the remaining balance after offsetting of input tax/oeditable
input tax from purchases against VAT payable from sales of seMces. The Corponation's
defened cqdits amounted to P118.290 million and P25.501 million for 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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21. SHARE CAPITAL

This account consists of various classes of shares of stock with authorized par value of
P10 per share, details of which are presented below:

Pr€furred "A'
(8-16 per cent cumulative, non-pailicipding, non-voting)

Authorized- 1,400,000 shares
{.00.000 Shares Treasury Stocks {4.000.000

Prefened "B"
(8-1 7 per cent cumulative, non-participating, non-voting)

Authorized- 42,114,879 shares \

lssued and outstanding Republic of the philippines
Through the APT (now

15,000,000 Shares PMO) - previously under
PNB

3.689.500 Shares Marubeni
150,000,000
36,895,000

,l8,689,500 186,895,m0

Prefierred "G-
(14 per cent cumulative, non- participating, non-voting)
Authorized - 6,485,121 shares

lssued and outstanding Republic of the Philippines
Through the APT (nor
PMO) - previously under
NDC6.485.121 64,851,210

Preferred "D"
(8 per cent cumulative, pafticipating, voting)

Authorized-27,800,000 shares
lssued and outstanding
25.500,000 Shares PMO (previouslv under PNB) 255,000.000

Special common
(non-voting, no pre-emptive right, participating)
Authorized-l 0, 000, 000 shares
lssued and outstanding

3,815 Shares Carlito C. Paulino
4{l Shares Editha U. Cruz. 376 Sharcs Adolfo S. Suzara

" 129 Shares Vicente Longkino

38,150
4,574
3,760
1,29O
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Trcasury Stocks

295,227 Shares

72,168 Shares

Formerly held by PNCC
Employees Savings &
Loan Association

Formerly held by Alfrcdo V,
Asuncion

2,952,270

721,680

372,112 3,721,720

Subscribed-

,|.484,260 Shares
FEBTC Trustee-PNCC Stock

Trust Fund ,l4.84iI.600

Common
Authorized-1 82,200,000
shares
lssued and outstanding-

79,271,024 Shares

Republic of the Philippines
Through the APT (Now
PMO) - previously under:

Phil. Export Foreign
Loan Guarantee

Development Bank of the
Phils.

NDC
Govemment Service I nsurance

System
Universal Holding Corporation
Vafious Brokers
Various Corporations
Cuenca lnvestment Corporation
Pioneer lnsurance and Surety

Corporation
l-and Bankof the Philippines
PNCC Employees
I ndividual (Non-emoloyees)

47,490,383
15,360,831
6,811,343
4,562,384
1,178,856

Shares
Shares
Shares
Shares
Shar*

Shares
Shares
Shares
Shares

964,800
657,836
335,391

7,037,935

375,8/,5,770

269,874,470
146,990,000

474,903,830
153,608,310
68,115,430
45,623,840
11,788,560

9,O48,000
6,578,360
3,353,910

70.379.350
{63,670,983 {,636,709,830

Common Subecribed-
9,419,915 Shares

909,276 Shares
149,328 Sharcs
33,391 Shares
27,693 Shares

Universal Holding Corporation
Cuenca I nvestment Corporation
Various Corporations
PNCC Employees
Various Brokers

94,199,150
9,092,760
1,493,280

333,910
276,930

173 Sharcs ,l 730
I 7,78O10,77?,776

228,375,812 Sharm

lndiMdual

receivable (Note 22)
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The cumuldive prefened shares are those that are entitled to any dividends not declared
in the prior pedod (dividends in arrears) such that when dividends are declarcd in the
cunent period, the dividends in amears are to be satisfied first.

Dividends (in anearc) on cumulative prefened shares are not recognized in the books due
to the Board of Directors' non-declaration of dividends. Sucfr action of the PNCC Board
is supported by Article Xl, Section 11.01 of the Amended Corporelte By-Laws which
provides that "Dividends maybe dedared annually or oftener as the Boad of Directors
may determine. The Boad of Directorc may dedare dividends only from the surplus profits
of the Corporation."

For purposes of the required disdosure in the financial statements, the dividends in
arrears (computed from 2007 to 2019) ane as follours:

Name of
Stockholderc

(a) Class of Stock
(b)

Shareholdings

Undedared
Dividend

(bxcx 13
yrs)(c)

Republic of the Phil.
Through the PMO
(previously under
PNB)

Marubeni

Prefened '8" (8 per cent-17
per @il, cumulative,
non- pafticipating, non-
voting)

Prefered "B' (8 per oent-17
per oent, cumulatiYe,
non- participating, non-
voting)

Prefened "C" (14 per cent,
cumulative, non-
participating, non-
voting)

Pr€fiened "D" (8 per cent,
cumulative, non-
pafiicipating, norF
votins)

150,000,000 156,000,000

36,895,000 38,370,900

&[,851,210 119,029,202

Republic of the Phil.
Through the PMO
(previously under
NDC)

Republic of the Phil.
Through the PMO
(prwiously under
PNB) 255,000,000 265,200,000

506.74/,,210 577,600.002

The above dividends in anears are not recognized as liabilities because there is no
obligating event yet.
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22. SUBSCRIPTIONS RECEIVABLE

This account represents the unpaid amount due from the following subscriberc on
subscription of the Corporation's shares of stock, the due ddes of which are, by
agreement, of valid call by the Board of Directorc:

Universal Holding Corporation
Cuenca lnvestment Corporation
Other Corporations
lndividuals

8, 02,274
6,115,287

966,630
7
1

1

As of the end of 2019, there was no call made by the Board of Diredors for the unpaid
subscriptions.

23. EQUITY ATUUSTTEI{TS

Under Rehabilitation Plan-Loans Transfiened to National Govemment NG)

This account represents substantial portion of the Gorporation's liabilities to Govemment
Financial lnstitutions (GFls) which should have been converted into equity pursuant to
Presidential Letter of lnstruciion (LOl) 1295 dated February 23, 1983, and liabilities to the
govemment agencies transfened to the Govemment pursuant to Proclamation No. 50
issued by the President of the Philippines on December 8, 1986.

(ln thousand pesos)

Philippine National Bank
National Development Company
Philguarantee
Central Bank of the Philippines
Bureau of the Treasury

2,865,4.45
{,356,093
1,204,311

75,654
39,99{

Bank of the
5,551,727

The above-mentioned Corpomtion indebtedness remain unconverted as it is the
Corporation's posilion, as supported by the Ofiice of the Solicitor General (OSG) opinion
dated August 23,2007, that based on LOI 1295, sfiich was a special law promulgated to
rehabilitate the Corporation, the debts have effec{ively been onverted to equity and,
therefore, should no longer incur interest charges.

The Privatization Management Office (PMO), hoyvever, still onsiderc these unconverted
debts as liabilities, claiming the total amount of P65.915 billion as of December 31, 2019
and P65.149 billion as of December 31 ,2018, inclusive of accumulated interest charyes
and penalties amounting to P59.665 billion and P59.597 billion, respectively. These
amounts have not been recognized in the books of the Corpomtion. The Corporation did
not recognize the disputed intenest charges and penalties based on the following:
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. The Suprcme Court (SC) itself had recognized the validity of LO! 1295 and that it still
legally exists today;

o The failurc to convert alldebts to equity is conside!€d an administrative matter; and

o The P5.552 billion is not a debt but simply represents unissued shares of stocks
awalting ac'tual convercion to equrty pursuant to LOI 1295 and, as such, continued
imposition of interests and penalties is not wananted.

The above position of the Corponation is supported by the Office of the Solicitor General
(OSG) and the Office of the Govemment Corporate Counsel(OGCC).

!n like manner, the Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) is claiming as of December 31 ,2012 the
amount of P2.735 billion (inclusive otP1.327 billion interest) representing advances made
by BTr to settle the Corporation's foreign obli,gations with credilors. tt is the Corporation's
position that said loans are induded in the Equrty Adjustments under Rehabilitation Plan
which are among the accounts transfened by the Corporation to the Govemment through
the Asset Privatization Trust (APT) pursuant to PNCC's Rehabilitation Plan of 1987 and
are no longer recoded as liabilities in the Corporation books. As such, the Corporation is
precluded from servicing the accounts.

As discussed in Note 17, the apptication of the P50 million and P100 million payments in
2008 and 2010, respedively, against outstanding NG advanoes were already effected in
the aforesaid confirmed amount of P2.73S billion.

ln view of the differences on the treatment of the P5.552 billion unconverted debt to
gquity, the Corporation and the PMO resolved to submil the matter to the Department of
Justice (DOJ) for arbitration:

o PNCC, Petitionervs. PMO, Respondent (OSJ Case No. 02-2012)

The parties entered into a JointStipulation of Fads and lssues identifying the issues,
as follows:

P5.4 billion which, inclusive of intercsts as of October 31,2011, amounted to
P51.060 billion;

should be considered as simple loan;

and penalty charges; and

Act, as amended, the charters of DBp (RA gs, as amended), pNB (pD 6st4), and
. LBP (RA 3844), which all restrictett the GFI's exposure to non-allied industries."

The DOJ, in its February 18, 2014 Consolidated Decision, dismissed the Corporation,s
Petition against PMO, the dispositive portion of which reads:
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"WHEREFORE, premises @nsidered, the Peffiion ftled by the PNCC
againgt the PMO, is hercby DTSMTSSED. As pnyed for by the rcspndent
PMO, petitioner PNCC is hereby orderd to pay respndent PMO, in behalf
of the National Govemment, the amount of P51,060,330,92.40 as of 31
October 2011, repre*nbng rfs due and &mandable obligalion to the latter,
inclusive of the inferesfs, plus lnferes{s and penalties until ac:tually paid."

The Corporation filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) dated March 13, 2014, duly
received at the DOJ on March 14,2014. The Corporation pnayed that the DOJ consider
the consolidation as not proper and decide on OSJ Case No. 02-2012 sepamtely:

by PMO on the actuat outstanding debt of PNCC to the National Govemment is
without basis and violative of LOI 1295;

amount of P5.4 billion, representing the value of the unconverted debt-to-equity
obligation to the Govemment Financial lnstitutions (GFls); and

pursuant to the dear and explicil instrudions under LOI 1295.

On January 22,2015, DOJ denied PNCC's MR. PNCCfiled a supplementtothe MR on
May 28, 2015 which was also denied by the DOJ in its oder dated July 13, 2015.

On June 26,2015, PNCC filed a Notice of Appealwith the ffice of the President of the
Republic of the Philippines (OP) and filed the conesponding appeal memorandum on
July 27,2015.

The Corporation is awaiting the resolution of the OP on the appeal.

24. SERVICE AND BUSIII|ESS IlilCOillE

This account consists of the foltowing:

24.1 Service lncome

20{9 2018 2017
Supply of manpowerto Sknray O&M

Corporution
Seruices for structural repairs. MIAA
Plantwide structural steel rehabilitation-

Philohos

47,397,559
19,971,6{1

37,570,690
0

34,880,764
0

0 0 4.305.E87
67,369,170 37,570,690 39,196,651
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Starting October 1,2015,the Corporation assumed the operations of DISC Contractors,
Builders and.General Services lnc. (DCBGSI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Corporation.

24.2 Rental/Lease lncome

This account represents the revenue derived out of the Corporation's real estate
properties located in the following areas:

2019 2018 2017
Pasay City
Porac. Pampanoa

26,676,454
2A20,632

72,361,945
43s,600

124,950,317
435.600

29,097,086 72,797,545 125,385,917

PNCC is the lessor under an operating lease agreemehts with Pacific Concrete Products,
lnc. (PCPI) in the FCA, Pasay C'ty and Tokagawa Global Corporation (TGC) in Porac,
Pampanga. The lease with PCPI has a term of 25 years, with renewal option and option
of pre-termination upon reasonable notice by the lessor, while the lease with TGC has a
fixed peilod of five yeani, ommencing on September 1 ,2019 until August 91,2024,
unless otherwise terminated at an eadier time by the lessor for rcasonable cause.

The future minimum lease payments under these operating leases are as follows as of
December 31:

20{g 2018
Within one year 1,815,474

382,709,294
57,909,563
29,047,5UAfrer one vear but less than five vearc

384,523,768 79,957,147

The decrease in rental income in 2018 and 2019 is due to the non-lenewal of leases of
the FCA, Pasay Gity property effective May 31, 2018 pursuant to Board Resolution No.
BD 069-2018 dated April 17, 2018. The PNCC Board of Directorc resolved not to extend
the lease contracts of various leases upon expirdion of the one-year term contracts on
May 31 ,2018 in view of the planned development of the subject property.

Due to non-renewal of Contracts of Lease, the PNCC demanded the lessees to vacate
the property. However, seven lessees did not heed the said demand and refused to
vacate the leased premises. Of the seven lessees, two paid rentats which payments
were treated by PNCC as compensation for the damages it has incuned dde [o their
continued mupation of the property.

The PNCC subsequently filed ejecilment cases against these lessees who refused to
vacale^the qroperty. Afterthe cases have been filed, two lessees offered rentalpayments
lo PNCC. ln May 2018, PNCC received nine checks totaling P28.206 million dated
Deoember 1,2017 to May 23,2018 from one lessee. However, the PNCC Board of
Directors decided not to enter into any amicabte settlement with the lessee and instructed
the Management to prcceed with the ejectment case and retum the checks to the lessee.f!.: otlqlegsee likewise offiercd rentat payments to PNCC amounting to p33.050
million. PNCC however, did not accept said rentat payments in view of the a--bove position
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of the Board of Directors and also for the reason that the same might affec[ PNCC's
position in the pending ejec*ment case. The said lessee filed a Motion for Consignation
of Rental Payments on July 1'1,2018 and consigned the check payments in Court.

24.3 Share in ProfiURevenue of Joint Venture

This account consists of the following:

2019 2018 2017
Revenue Share

MNTC 66,032,089 64,699,415 50,949,430
CMMTC 33,lqlJ98 32,il9,273 31,367,167
SLTC 18,691,700 19,533,244 17,307,595

117,911,*7 115.870.932 99.623.192
\

As discussed in Note 17, pending issuane by the Toll Regulatory Board (TRB) and the
Commission on Audit (COA) of the lmplementing Rules and Guidelines (lRG) for the
determination of the amounts due to the Corporation for ils administrative expenses, the
Corporation recognized 10 per cent of ils share from the JVCs' gross toll revenues in
accordance with the interim rules and guidelines issued by TRB.

The franchise of PNCC under PD 1113 to operate, @nstruct, and maintrain toll facilities
in the North and South Luzon Tollways for a period of 30 years expired on May 1,2007.
l/tftth its expiration, the toll assets and facilities of PNCC were automatically tumed over
to the govemment at no cost. The Suprcme Court (SC), in Emesto B. Francisco vs.
TRB, PNcc et al. (G.R. Nos. 166910,169917, 173630, and 183599, october 19, 2010)
and in the case of Strategic Alliance Development Corporation vs. Radstock Securities
Limited et al. (G.R. No. 178158, December 4, 2009), ruled and declared that wilh the
expiration of the Corporation's franchise, the toll assets and facilities of the Corporation
were automatically tumed over, by operation of law, to the National Government (NG)
at no cost and consequenfly, this inevitably rcsulted in the latter's owning too the toll
fees and the net income derived #er May 1,2OO7 from the toll assets and facilities,
including the Corporation's percentage share in the toll fees collec*ed by the JVCs
currently operating the tollways, induding NLEX and Skyway.

On March 22,2012, TRB issued an interim rules and guidelines for the remittrance by
the JVCs to the NationalTrcasury of the net income that is supposed to be remitted by
the JVCs from the revenues of the NLEX, SLEX and Sknvay in accordance wtth the
Francism Case.

larg9raRh 2 of the said guidelines provide that "(a)s subseguenily agreed upon by
PNCC and TRB as an inteim arvangefirent, 10 per crlnt of all amounti tnat arealpposei
to be rcmifred by the JV ampanies shall be sef-asrde by the JV ampany for remittance
t9 PNC_C. The ninety (90) prcent shall be remitted to the TRB forthe NitionalTreasury
immediately."

Relative to the aforesaid interim rules and guidelines, a complaint (entitled: Rodotfo M.
Cuenca vs. Toll Regulatory Boald, et al., Civil Case No. 1$919) was filed before the
Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Maketi Bnanch 132by petilioner Rodolfo M. Cuenca, in his
capacity as stockholder of the Corporation, against TRB, COA, Manila North Tollways

68



Corporation (MNTC), CITRA Metro Manila Tollways Corporation (CMMTC), South Luzon
Tollways Corpqrdion (SLTC) and Manila Toll Expressways Systems, lnc. (MATES) and
the Corporation as respondents.

ln his petition, Cuenca said that "there rc ffie very real Nssibility thatwhatthe respondent
corpontions MNTC, CMMTC, StfC and MATES have remitted, and will be remitting, to
the NG is above or much more than what should be remitted given the acfual and true
financial sifuation of the respon&nt coryontions. Ihis gles nse fo the unfurtunate
complication that sudr overyayments may only be rcimbursd by the NG through
cumbercome, to say the least, bu@etary process."

Thus, petitioner is praying forthe Honorable Courtthat:

rules and guidelines embodying the finalformqla relative to the determination of
the net income remittable by respondent PNCC to the NG;

direc{ly to the NG until respondents TRB and COA have issued the fina!
implementing rules and guidelinEs; and

amounts they are ready to remit to the NG untilthe final implementing rules and
guidelines has been issued by TRB and COA.

On May 9,2014, a Writ of Preliminary lnjundion was issued by the RTC of Makati Branch
132, enjoining and restraining the TRB and PNCC fiom implementing the interim rules
and guidelines dated March 22,2012. The respondent corporations, namely: MNTC,
CMMTC, SLTC and MATES, were direc{ed to fonrard the entire amounts to be rcmitted
by them under their respec*ive Supplemental Toll Operations Agreement (STOA) to the
Corporation.

It appearing that the govemment stands to suffer gravely and ineparably from the
aforesaid ruling of the RTC as it deprives the govemment of income based on the
govemment's direct ownerchip of the assets and frcilities of the Corporation, the
Supreme Gourt (SC) resolved, on August4, 2014, to require respondentstofile Comment
on the petition, not a motion to dismiss, wilhin ten (10) days from notice and to issue,
effective immediately and continuing until further orderc from the SC, a Temporary
Restraining Order C[RO), enjoining the RTC of Makati Branch 132, the private
respondent, their representatives, agents or other persons ac,ting on their behalf from
implementing the RTC Resolution dated April30, 2}14in CivilCase No. 1&919.

The Petition is still pending resolution before the SC.
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24.4 Dividend lncome

This account consists of the following

2018 2017

CMMTC
ASDI and CESLA

40,286,510
329.502

55,187,000
383.010

57,946,350
808.866

4,616,102 55,570,010 58,755,216

24.5 lnterest lncome

This account consists of interest income eamed on bank deposits amounting 1oP22.552
million, P10.187 million and P5.975 million in 2019,2018 and 2017, respeciively.

25. GAtltS

This account consists of the following:

9 2018 2017
Gain from changes in fair value of

investment property {9,{06,724,000 0 2,847,8il,25}
Gain on reversal of allowance for

inventory wrttedown 0 227,907 611,219
Gain on sale of property and

equipment 529,869 0 0
t9,107,25i!g6g 222,907 2,848,475,469

26. OTHER NONOPERANilG NCOiIE

This account consists of the following:

20{9 2018 2017

of impairment loss on
receivables

Other income - net
0

1.578.929
643,775

62.979.396
300,000

1

{,578,929 1 63,623,171

The reversal of impairment loss on reoeivables in 2018 was due to settlement of a
disallowed cash advane granted to a former PNCC consultant which was applied
against the salary payments of a fonrer PNCC orfficer (the onty person liable connected
to the corporation at the time the coA order of Execution w€s issued).

The other income - net account in 2019 mainly consists of income derived from forfeited
secunty deposits of lessees, sale of scrap materials, sale of bid documents, unclaimed
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separation pay of vadous separated SOMCO employees and dosed check payments
made to varioup payees.

27. PERSONNEL SERVICES

This account consists of the following:

20{9 2018 2017

Salaries and wages
CIher compensation
Person nel benefit contribution
Other perconnelbeneftts

3{,302,865
5,503,700
2,g1g,tl4
3,864,193

32,601,346
5,396,163
2,325,787
6.036,252

29,4',11,574
4,791,030
1,92'.,,832
5,660,625

43,400,432 46,359,548 41,785,061

28. TAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:

20{9 2018
(As restated)

2017

Generalservices
Depreciation
Professional seMces
Taxes, insurance, and otherfees
Transportdion and traveling
Dircctors and committee membels fees
Utility
Litigation expense
Repairc and maintenanoe
Representation expenses
Communication
Supplies and materials
Training and scholarship
Loss on sale of property and equipment
Other maintenance and operating

expenses {,6{0,794 565,407 371,470

7,4$4,593
6,654,858
6,{14,525
4,931,994
1,2*,875
4,106,400
2,296,379
1,742,766
1,852,U7
1,49{,093
1,82,198

500,253
117,W

0

5,346,508
7 374,A8
5,653,370
4,934,609
4,266,336
3,987,601
2,203,731
1,923,470
1,700,932
1,038,978
1,356,505

481,750
1,001,153

207,728

4,001,292
6,139,729
3,478,704
4,U2,194
3,124,300
2,858,598
1,870,919
2,027,330

857,358
303,939

1,492,144
510,559
536,693

0

42 026 31 51 289
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29. DTRECT COSTS

This account oonsists of the following:

20tg 2018 2017

Labor
Equipment operations costs
Materials

Others

55,809,069
183,995
10,{79

0

30,485,584

190,887

6,670

5.243

28,816,597
350,717

1,184,706
19.531

55,863,243 30,688,384 30,371,551

As stated in Note 24.1 , starting October 1 , 2015,the Corporation assumed the operations
of DCBGSI, a wholly-orned subidiary of the Corporation.

\

30. rNcorutE TAxEs

The Corpomtion's provision for income tax forthe year 2019 is P3.950 million computed
underthe Minimum Corporate lncome Tax (MCIT).

As of December 31, 2A19, the balance of the MCIT is as follons:

Date
lncurrcd Amount Application Expired Balance

Expiry
Date

2019
2018
2017

3,950,431
5,028,865
7,151,247

3,950,431
5,028,865
7,151,247

2022
2021
2020

0
0
0

0
0
0

{6,.130,54i1 0 0 {6,{30,543

As of December 31 , 2019, and 201 8, the following are the temporary differences for which
no defened tax asset was set up because Management believes that it is more likely that
no future taxable inoome is available against which the benefit from defened tax assE6
can be offiset:

20{g 2018
Allowance for losses on assets forwrite off
Allowance for impairment losses
Allowance for impairment - other materials

and supplies
Allowanoe for losses on investments

9,615,122,219
653,874,239

2,992,956
177.180.811

9,615,422,219
659,495,246

2,992,956
177,180311

10,ffi;470.225 10,455,091.232
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As of December 31, 2019, and 2018, the recognized defened tax assets pertain to the
following:

20{9 2018
Carry fonrard benefit of unapplied tax credils 22,680,0{7 28,798,001
Excess of MCIT over the regular corporate

As of December 31,2019, and 2018, defened tax liabilities pertain to the following:

2019 2018
(As restated)

Fair value adjustment of investment property

Revaluation increment in property
10,132,283,160

4il,124,523
4,400,265,960

193,378,280
10,582,407,683 4,593,U4,244

Defened tax liabilities pertain to the deemed tax on the increase in value of investment
properg and property and equipment as required by PAS 12, lnome Iaxes.

3{. OTHER COUPREHEilSIVE INCOTE

This account pertains to unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
every reporting period of investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Corporation recognized unrealized loss of P40,000
and unrealized gain otP224,000 in 2018 and 2019, respeciively, from these investments.

32. TAX TATTERS

The Corporation was assessed bythe Bureau of lntemal Revenue (BlR) fordeficiencies
in various taxes. However, no provision for any liability has been made yet in the
Corporation's fi nancial statemepts.

Deficiency intemal revenue taxes for taxable year 1980 (income tax, contrac{o/s tax,
and documentary stamp tax) totaling P212.52 million.

o

The Coryoration sought a reinvestigation of the case on November 8, 1995, and as
a consequen@, the 8lR issued a ftnal decHon prcmulgated on Septemberg, 2004
ordering PNCC to pay the amount of P101.46 million, the rcduclion of P111.87
million rcpre*nt ddciency antnc'tor's tax which the BIR resolved to anrel and
withdnw fiom the assessment it being bereft of merit for lack of legalbasrg fhus
frnding the Corponfon's oontention meritorbus.

The Corpontion, in its lefter dated February 15, 2@5, informed the BIR that it had
filed a Petttbn with the Departurenf ofJustce (DOJ) seeking fhe reyensa I of the BrR's
rcsotufron hotding the Coryontion slitt tiable for the aforesaid tat< defrciencies and
has applied br an interim order or meastrc fiun he DOJ to suspend or stop the
collection of subjed amount pending rasdution of the Petition.

73



a Deficiency business tax of P64 million due from the Belgian Consortium, the
Corporatiop's partner in its LRT Project.

Deficiency intemal revenue taxes for taxable year 1992 (income tax, value-added
tax, and expanded withholding tax) of P1.(X billion which was reduced to P709
million after the Corporation's wrttten protest.

PNCC Management, however, requested for a meetinglanferene for the
clafification of the issue, the rcduced amount still being the rcsult ot a jeopady
assessn?ent. The BIR has not rcspondedas of date.

Deficiency intemal revenue taxes fortaxable year 2O0?totaling P72.92 million.

Management, in close coodination with the mne,emed BIR officers, presented a
more detailed analyvs of the acolunts,. Said presentation and the Corporation's
availment of the tat< amnesty had stbstantially bduced the aforcsaid deficiency
faxes.

Deficiency taxes for taxable year 2006 amounting to P116.141 million (inclusive of
interest of P48.76 million).

Management, in iE letter of Oclober 29, 2010 to the BlR, protested the aforcsaid
proposed deficiency tat<es pursuantto Section 203 of the NrRC of 1997 (Prescription
of limitation upon assessrnentandallection) and Revenue Regulations(RR) No.12-
99 (which rcquircs drscussion between the Corp',a,tion and BIR Examiner/s before
submissrbn of the rcpoft to the BIR Chief anemed).

No discussion happened as fhe Corp',ation came to laow of the findings on the
allegd &ftciency faxes only on October 22, 2010, way beyond tha three (3)-year
prc*iption pedd of April 15,2010.

To date, the Corpontion has not received any formal communicafion fiom the BIR
after its letter on October 29, 2010.

Deficiency intemal revenue taxes forthe taxable year 2009 in the amount ol P87 .414
million (basictax of P51.957 million and interest/penafty charges of P35.457 million).

After senes of wriften prctest{ammunications with and prcsentation of
doanmentary evidences to the BlR, the prcpased deficiency tat<es of P87.414 million
was rcduced to P21.147 million (basic tax of P113A miilion and interesl/penalty
charyes of N.763 million).

The basic faxes of P6.565 million (expandd withtnlding tat<, witrtholding tax on
compensation, aN fringe benefrttax) and P4.819 million (final withholding tas<) werc
paid on November 28, 2013 and qt January 10, 2014, repec,tively.

On January 70, 2074, the Corpontion reguested reansidention for the attendant
charges of H).763 million, in the amount equitable to both the BIR and the
Corpontion pursuantto Section 204 of the National lntemal Revenue Code (NIRC)
and therclated rcvenue rcgulations.

a

a

a
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On November 2, 2016, the Coryontion reeived a Final Decision on Disputed
AssessmeJrt for expan&d withholding taoc withholding tat< on compensation, final
withholding of VAT and fiinge benefrt tat< for a total assessed amount of P15.425
million (basic tat< of P8.934 million and intercsilpnalty darges of P6.491 million).

The Corpration, in its letter dated April 10, 2017 to the BlR, requested that the
Corpontion be allowed ta avail of rcliefs by way of rcduction or abatement of the
charges and a favonble ansidentiordreansiderution ftom the BlR.

On July 30, 2018, the Corpontion paid m.$3 million reprcsenting 10 per ent of
the basic tat< rclative to its application for mmpromise *tflement of its deficiency
faxes. A Board Resolution (BD 1602018) was passed duing a meeting of the PNCC
Boad of Directors on August 15, 2018, wherein, President and CEO Maio K.
Espinosa was authoize4 to enter into a comryomise of up to 40 per cent minimum
amount of basic ta<.

On September 4, 2018, the Corryntion signifred its intention to incrcase the affer of
ampromise fiom 1O per ent (PO.@3 million) to 40 per cent (P3.574 million) of the
basic tax.

The BlR, in its letter dated September 11, 2018 informed PNCC that purcuant to
Revenue Regulation (RR) 9-2013, amending ce,rtain provisions of RR 30-2002
pailiculaily Secfon 4 ff is expressly statd that:

*The ampromise offer shall be paid by the tattpayer upon ftling of the
application br comprcmise *tflement. No aoolication for comprunise
setflement shall be orcessed without the full setilement of the offercd
amount ln case of disapproval of the applicationforampromise setflement
the amount oe,id upon ftling of the aforc.nid application shall be dducled
from the total out*anding tax liabilities."

33. CONTINGENT LIABLMES'CONTINGENT ASSETS

PE N DING LAWS U ITS'LITIGATIoNS

Continoent Liabilities

The Corporation has oontingent liabilities with respect to claims and lawsuits.
Management believes that the final resolution of these issue will materially affec,t the
Corpordion's fi nancial position.

Asiavest Merchant Bankers (Mt Berhad vs. PNCC

This case arose after Asiavest-GDCP Sdn. Bhd. (Asiavest-CDCp), a corporation
organized by both CDCP (now PNCC) and Asiavest Hotdings (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(Asiavest Holdings), which ac'ted as PNCC's suboontractor in Malaysia, failed to
complete the projed in Malaysia. Asiavest Merchant Bankers (M) Berhad (AMB),
which prcvided various guarantees and bonds to PNCG in onnec{ion with the
construction contrds in Malaysia, thus sought reimbursement of the surety bond
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the former paid to the State of Pahang (Malaysia). The amount involved is
Malaysian Ringgil (MYR) 3,91 5,053.54.

On April 12, 1994, AMB instituted the case before the Pasig City Regional Trial
Court (RTC). PNCC through its lega! counsel, Office of the Govemment Corporate
Counsel (OGCC), had filed four (4) motions for extension of time to file answer
and/or any responsive pleading. However, PNCC was not able to file its Answer to
the Gomplaint because the transactions were executed in Malaysia and the
documents were not then immediately available. Thus, a judgment by default was
rendered by the trial court. Efrotts were made towards lifting of the default order
and reconsideration of the decision, butthe same were denied.

PNCC appeled the case to the Court of Appeals (CA) but was dismissed in its
Decision dated June 10, 2005. A Motion for Reconsideration (MR) was filed but
the same was denied. \

A Petition for Review on Certiorari was filed before the Supreme Court which
eventually decided against PNCC last April 4, 2A16. On April 6, 2016, OGCC
received a Motion for issuance of Alias Writ of Execution filed by AMB wtth RTC.
On April 16, 2016, PNCC filed its opposilion thereto arguing that the subjecl claim
should be filed first with COA before a Wft of Execution can be issued by RTC.

The RTC Branch 153 denied Asiavest's Motion for Execution and its subsequent
Motion for Reeonsideration. Subsequently, Asiavest filed with CA a Petition for
Certiorari and Mandamus, towhich PNCCfiled a Comment and Opposition on May
29,2019.

On August 14,2018, PNCC received the CA Second Division's Notice of Judgment
denying and dismissing the above Petilion for Certiorari and Mandamus. Asiavest
filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR), a copy of which was received by pNCC
on August 30, 201 8. on oc{ober 8, 2018, PNcc filed its Comments on the subject
MR. ln a Resolution dated November 29,2018, the CA Former Second Division
denied Asiavest's MR for lack of merit.

AsiavestMerchantBankers (Ml Berhadvs. courtof Aooeals and pNCC

This case involves the enforcement of a foreign judgment rendered against PNCC
in Malaysia for guarantees it issued on various construction projec,ts invotving
Malaysian Ringgit (MYR) 5,108,290.23. The pasig city RTc and the court of
Appeals (cA) rendered decisions in favor of pNcc, dated october 14, 1991 and
May 19, 1993, respectively.

!n 2001 , the Supreme Court (SC) rendered a decision reversing the decision of the
cA and ordered the payment of the foreign award. ln 2002, [he easig city RTC
issued a Writ of Execution which was partially satisfied but PNCC Iater aslied for
its temponary suspension by moving to quash the writ because of: (a) change of
the party's status making the execution inequitable; and, (b) the clairir has already
prescribed under Malaysian larrs. ln 2}15,the RTC finally denied PNCC's Motion
to Quash, including the subsquent MR. PNCC has since filed a Petition for
Certiorari which is pending in the CA. ln April 2016, AMB's counsel filed for Ex-
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Parte Motion for lssuance of Alias Writ of Execution to enforce the 2002 Writ of
Executiqn. PNCC has since opposed it, prompting AMB to file its Urgent Motion to
Resolve.

The RTC denied PNCC's Motion to Quash. Because of the denial of the said
Motion to Quash, PNCC filed a Petition for Certiorari with the CA on the RTC's
Orders. On December 18, 2017, the CA denied the Petilion for Certiorari and
subsequently, the Motion for Reconsideration was also denied on June 17,2018.
On August 23,2018, the PNCC filed a Petition for Reviar on Certiorari with the
Supreme Court.

ln view of the forcgoing, the Coryoration, through its legalcounsel, OGCC, shallcontinue
to exhaust all legaloptions provided by law.

Continoent Asset
..

On January 19,2}12,the Corporation ftled a pe{ition for money ddm against the Manila
lnternationalAirport Authority (MIAA) with COA, for payment of price adjustments due to
vadation orderc in the strudural repair of roof deck slabs, @lumns, and steel trusses
projec't at Gate Nos. 2, 7, 9, and 15 of the Ninoy Aquino lntemationalAirport lntemational
Passenger Terminal I, in the total amount of P26.113 million.

On Septembr 27,2017, the COA Commission Prcper under CP Decision No. 2017-310
granted with modification PNCC's claim against MIAA and direded MIAA to pay PNCC a
reduced amount of P22.368 million.

The Corporation filed a motion for COA to issue a Notice of Finality of Decision (NFD).
However, on February 5, 2018, COA issued a resolution defening the issuance of the NFD
stating that Mr. Serafin D.P. lgnacio wrote a letterto COA regarding the matterwhich was
treated by COA as a Motion for Reconsidemtion.

On November 26, 2018, the COA Commission Proper En Banc issued a resolution
dismissing the Motion for Reconsideration of Mr. Senfin D.P. lgnacio. Accordingly, COA
Decision No. 2017-310 vvhich granted PNCC's Petition for Money Claim against MIAA is
affirmed with finality in the reduced amount of P22.368 million. A Notice of Finality of
Decision shall be issued by the COA.

ln July 2019, PNCC received payment
MIAA amounting to P22.368 million.

for judgmental obligation from

On August 8, 2019, 90 per cent of P2,.368 million or P20.131 million was paid to
Hydrocure, lnc., represented by Mr. Serafin D.P. lgnacio, who ac.tually made the structural
repairs in MIAA, while the remaining 10 per cent was retained by pNCC.

Pend ino Lawsuits/Liliqations

ln addition, the Corporation is involved in continuing litigations relating to labor and civil
cases. The uhimate outcome of these litigations cannot be determined yet and no
provision for any liability that may result can be made in the financial statements.

The labor cases consist of those filed against the Gorpontion comprised mostly of claims
for illegal dismissal, backwages, sepamtion pay, and unpaid beneftts. Most of these cases
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have been ruled by the Labor Arbiter in favor of the complainant. However, these cases
are on appeal by the Corporation before the National Labor Relations Commission, Court
of Appeals and Supreme Court.

The civilcasesfiled againstthe Corporation consist of cases involving damages, collection
of money, and attomefs fees, which are still in litigation before various Regional Trial
Courts. On the other hand, those ftled by the Corpordion against other individuals or
companies consist of suits invoMng sums of money, damages, and brcaches of contrac{
which involve undeterminable amount of money.

34. RELATED PARTY TRA]ISACTIONS

Key Management Compensation

Key Management includes the board of direciors, a[ mdmbers of management and other
company officers. Key management cornpensation totaled P14.112 million and P17.008
million in 2019 and 2018, respec'tively. A breakdoiln of these amounts as follows:

2018
Salaries and wages
other benefits
Perdiem

8,285,681
l,g3g,5gg
3,887,600

10,774,682
ziil,416
3,669,800

14;111'870 17,007,898

35. RESTATETIENT OF ACCOUNTS

The 2018 and 2017 financial statements were restated to reflect the following
tra n sactio n s/adj ustm ents :

CY 2017 errortE dlscoveled in 2019

December3l,
2017

(as prtviously
Restatements,
Adjustnents

January l,
2018

(as restated)

STATEUENTOF FINANCIAL
POSITION
Receivablec, net
liquidation of prior period Cash

Advances of employees

lnvestment Property
recognition of Gulod Condominium

as settlement of Suricon thru
dacion eri pago

ffi,7fi,479

(78,593)

445,627,996

14,7&,757,57914738,325,5q!

2,432,076
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Restatement on totalassets - net
increase 2,353.483

Financial Liabilitie
conedion of pnior period

reimbursable expenses

lnter-agency Payable
conection of prior period Output

VAT payable

23,324,85

2r',,8,rlJ43

(66,m0)

10,720,601

23,258,485

13,668,644

Restatement on total liabilities - net
increase 1

Restatement on of
Financial poeition - net decrcce 8,301,r.lg
Total restatement on 2017
financial staEments 118

CY 20{8 erors discovered in 2019

D,ecember 31,

ml8
(as previously

reported)

Restatemenb,l
Adjusftnents

December3{,
2018

(as rcstated)

STATETIiENT OF FINANGIAL
POSTT!ON

Receivables, net
recognition of overpayment of

Executive Assistants' probssional
fee

liquidation of prior years' cash
advances of employees

conection of 2018 other
miscellaneous income

468,78?,133 466,697,972

157,U2

(167,7461

(74,257)
Restatement on total assets - net
decrcase (84.r61)

Financial Liabilities
conedion of 2018 gereral and

adm inistrative expenses

lnter-agency Payable
conec'tion of prior p€riod

reimbursable expenses
over a@rual of pofessionalfee of

Executive Assistant

{4680,110

9,309,929

v89,4441

10,720,@1

(5,000)

13,890,666

19,115,429

Restatement on total liabilities - net
increase - 9.926.157

Restatermnt on Staternent of
Financial position - net increase (10,010,318)
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STATEMENTQF
COi'PREHENSIVE INCOME

Other non-operating income
conection of 2018 miscellaneous

and other income

Maintenance and other operating
expenaes

General services
conec'tion of 2018 gereraland
administrative expenses

Professional services
overpayment of Executive
Assistants service fee

Repairc and maintenance
liquidation of prior period cash
advances of employees

Travelling
liquidation of prior period cash
advances of employees

Directo/s allowance
liquidation of prior period cash
advances of employees

Training and Scholarship
liquidation of prior period cash
advances of employees

Non.cash expenses
recognition of prior years
depreciation pertaining to Gulod
Apartment as settlement of
receivable by Suricon

l,73g,l$

35,257,W
6,069,952

5,916,21f

1,659,504

4256,6d'

3,990,542

971,164

7,212,W

174,2571

(74,257)

1,6il,%'.12

(797,134) 34,460,250

5,346,509

(723,4441

5,653,370

(162,U2)

1,700,932

42,428

4,266,336

9,676

3,gg7,60l

7,059

1,001,153

29,989

161,243 7,3740d8

161,249
Retatement on net income - net
decrease 561,634

The Corpomtion presented three Statements of Financial Position in compliance with
the requirements of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Sfafemenfs, to include in a
complete set of financial statements a statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the earliest compaetive period whenever the entity retrospectively applies an
accounting policy or makes a rctros@ive restaGment of items in its financial
statements, orwhen it redassifies items in itsfinancialstatements.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK iIANAGEiIIENT OB.,ECTIVES AIIID FOLICIES

Financialrisk

The Corporction's prineipalfinancial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents,
restructured debt and advances to and from related parties. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Corporation's operations. The Corporation has
various other financial assets and liabilities sudr as reoeivables and vouchers payable
and accrued expenses (excluding statutory payables), which arise direstly from its
operations. The main risks arising from the Corporation'sfinancial instruments are credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Corporation's Board of Directors (BOD) and Management
review and approve the policies for managing each of this risk.

The Corporation monitors market price risk arising from all financial instruments and
regularly report financial management activities and th.e results of these activities to the
BOD.

The Corporation's risk management policies are summarized below. The exposure to
risk and howthey arise, as wellas the Corporation's objecilives, policies and processes
for managlng the risk and the methods used to measure the risk did not change from
prior years.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter dfficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Corporation monitors its cash flow position, debt
maturity profile and overall liquidity position in assessing its exposure to liquidity risk.
The Corporation maintains a level of .cash deemed suffcient to finanoe its cash
requirements. Operating expenss and working capital requirements are sufficiently
funded through cash collections.

The extent and nature of exposures to liquidity risk and hor they arise as well as the
Corporation's objecdives, policies and processes for managing the risk and the methods
used to measure the risk are the same for 2019 and 2018.

The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Corporation's financial assets
and financial liabilities as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, based on contradual
undiscounted cash flows:

ml9
<1 year >1 to <5 years >5 yearc Tota!

FinancialAssets
Cash
Short term lnvestment
Receivables

1U,697,979
1,186,199,230

1U,697,373
1,186,189,230

17 I
1 I 1 217 17 749

1 217
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20{9
<l year >l to <5 yearc >5 yearc Total

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other accounts payable
lnter-agency payables
Customer deposit
Uneamed lncome
Other financial liabilities
Other

1,7E6,1E0
13,064,321

14,987
1,885,302

125,553,334
118,290,4U
258,002,200

0
1,032,(X)8,800

0
8,515,997,816

583

1,7E6,1E0
13,064,321

14,9tt7
1,885,302

125,553,334
118,290,4U

9,806,008,816

711

2018
<1 year >1 lo <5 years >5 years Total

FinancialAssets
Cash205,158,38500205,158,385
Short term lnvestnent 730,179,490 0 0 730,179,490
Receivables 290,917,155 34,820,887 120,959,930 466,697,972

1,2ia6,255,030 54,E20,EE7 120,959,930 1,4{r2,035,E47

Financial Liabitities
Accounts payable
Accrued Expense
Other accounts payable
lnter-agency payables
Customer deposit
Uneamed lncome
Other financial liabilities
Other payables

1,623,91E 0 0 1,623,91E
10,462,228 0 0 10,462,228
1,8(N,520 0 0 1,8(N,520

'19,115,429 0 0 19,115,129
39,363,786 0 0 39,363,786
25,501,119 0 0 25,501,119

258,002,204 1,032,00E,900 8,257,W5,416 9,548,006,516
0 0 3,789,629 3,799,629

9,649,667,{45

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial Ioss. The Gorporation's exposure
to credit risk arises from default of the counterparties which include certain financial
institutions, real estate buyerc and suppliers.
Credit risk management involvs dealing only with institutions or individuals for which
credit limits have hen established, and with suppliers whose paying and performane
capabilities are rigorously screened.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to qedit risk for the components of the
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

20{9 2018

1

Cash
Receivables

134,697,373
393,200,749

205,158,385
466,697,972
671,856,357527,898,122
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As of December 31,2019 and 2018, the aging analysis per class of reeivables is as
follows:

20t9
l{dtherh tnprlnd

Duc llor Prltlln tutlbtlnpdnd Flnmclel
hp.ind Asr6 Tobl

Accounb Rccehnble:
Contrad related

reeivables 6,11,1,608 7,W,717 3,A4,821 1,589,350 90,&),[,92 0 1m,457,473
Advances to the Burcau of

theTreasury(BTr) 150,0fl),0fi) 0 0 0 0 0 150,000,0m
Accounbreceivabh-trade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Accounts rcceivable -

subsHiarirs and ..

affliates 1,356,62,[ 4,7il 2,W 0 899,754 0 2,N,174
Advancestosrppliens 6,000 588,0(2 0 0 i28,888 0 7n,W
Advanes b CESLA 1 ,445 9,046 1 ,,ml 851 121 ,181 0 133,924

Advanoee for SSS/EC

berrefib 13,718 2,753 0 0 8,i60 0 24,88

Rcehnbho from offican end eiplryr:
Offcers and empbyees 12l,9e
Diredons 0

8,&B (60) (1,186) 398,419 5n,7U

7,Ul to

2018

0
0

0

00

t91

0

7lg

Ndther Frat
Duc ]br
hrterlnd

Flrt&r6 Bot]{ot
<30d8s ' dry! C0{0dm >q,dry3

lmp.lnd
Flnrnchl

Aueb Tobl

Accounb Reooivrblo:
ContmdrelaM

receivaHes

Advanes to the &rnau of
ttrc Treasury @Tr)

Accounts reeivabh - tmde

Amunts reeivable -
subsijiarie and

ffiliates
Advanes b suppllens

Advances to CESLA

AdvamesbrSS$EC
benefib

Olheraooounts mciv$le

0 0

00
6,985 3,417,W.

0 178ffi,8n

00
1,215,60{ 3,1n,ff3

0 zE,66g,g5g

150,000,000

12,744,132

81,430,t107

628,441

1N,112

27,432,18

150,0m,0m
4,67,[,391

15,m1,636

s!,(x0
'13,690

4,3{0,860

6,252,n1
237,310

4m

0
31,510

6,196,714

28,@5

6,964

5,951,316

96,900
. 6,005

48,m7,970

182,55
89,1S)

0
0

5,256 0
0

0

0
0

10,750,790
5,256

15,123,150

0
0

0

0

0

0 $a7at.45520{,581,000 0,5@,900 9,650,355 7rt9,752
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Recelvables flom orfficen and arploycel:
Offiers and employees ' 389,950

DircdonE

11,242

0
2,m 512,371

0
915,792

0

0
0

0
061 61 725

FairValues

Set out below is a comprison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of
the Company's financial instruments that are canied in the statements of financial
position as of December 31 ,2019 and 2018.

Garrying Amount FairValue

0

m1s 2018 2019 2018

Flnancla! assets
Cash
Short-term invesknents
Receivables

134,697,373
1,188,189,230

205,158,;
730,179,490

134,697,373
1,186,1S,230

205,158,385
730,179,490

Financial liabilitiec
Accounts payable
Accrued expense
Otheracounts payable
lnter-agency payable
Gustonerdeposit
Unearned income
Other fi nancial liabilities

t[9

1,786,180
{3,064321

14,981
1,8E5,3(E

125,553,334
119,?piil,181

1,623,918
10,46p.,229

1,804,520
19,115,429
39,363,786
25,501,119

9,548,006,516

1,786,180
{3,(8432t

M,gat
1,E65,302

125,553,334
fi8,290184

9,8(8,008,816

1,623,918
10,rc2,228
1,8M,520

19,115,429
39,363,786
25,501,119

9,548,006,5169,8(8,(m,816

t 145

Cash and Ac@unts and Other Payables - carrying amounts approximate fair values due
to the relatively short-term mdurities of these investments.
Reoervables - carrying amountrs approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of
the receivables.

37. SUPPLEiIENTARY IilFORTATION OltI TA)(ES

ln compliance with the requirements set fodh by BIR Revenue Regulations 1$2010, the
following are the information on tiaxes, duties, and licenses paid or accrued during the
taxable year 2019:

37.1 The Corporation is a VAT-registered oorpontion with VAT output tax declaration of
P35.077 million for the year based on the amount rcf,ected in the Sales Account of
P292.306 million.
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37.2 The amognt of VAT input taxes daimed arc brcken down as follows:

Beginning of the year
Cunent yea/s purcfi ases:
Goods for resaldmanufacture or further processing
Goods otherthan for resale or manufiacture
Capital goods subjec't to amortization
Capital goods not subject to amortization
Seruices lodged under cost of goods sold
SeMces lodged under other acoounts
Claims fortax qediUrefund and other diustments

0

0
532,362

0
116,45

0
3,142,585

0
Balance atthe end of the year 3,791,392

37.3 Othertaxes and licenses:

Local:
Real Estate Tax
Mayofs Permit
Communitvtax

1,638,273
1,574,054

21.000
3,233,327

National:
BIR Annual Registration
VATlPercentage Taxes

500
1,363,219

71,410Otherc (Capital Gains TalDoc. StampTax)
1,435,129

37.4 The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to P5.775
million, broken dourn as follows:

Tax on compensation and benefits
Crcditable withholding taxes

4,515,499
'|',259,1U
5,774,673
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